
CITY COUNCIL BUSINESS MEETING AGENDA 

1705  MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, AL 

MAY 20, 2013 

6:30 P.M. 
                                                                              

 

 1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 2.  ROLL CALL / INVOCATION  

 

 3.  APPROVE MINUTES:    Council meeting minutes / May 6, 2013 

                                                  Council Work Session minutes / May 13, 2013 

 

 PRESENTATION:    Ryan Ramsay / Eagle Scout Project / MOTION: To approve project 

 

 PROCLAMATION:    Public Works Week / May 19-25, 2013 

                                            

 PUBLIC HEARING: 

   

        Annexation:                    GCOF The Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC 

        Location:                         Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee Boulevard and County Road 13 

        Present Zoning:               RSF-2, Single Family District, Baldwin County 

        Requested Zoning:          R-2, Medium Density Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne 

        Recommendation:           Favorable 

 

 MOTION:   To appoint a committee to review revisions to the Sign Provisions of the Land Use and  

                       Development Ordinance to report back to Council within 60 days.  Each Council member will   

                       appoint one (1) person to the committee 

 

MOTION:   To Call a Special Called Council Meeting for May 30, 2013 for a Federal Court Ordered  

                     Mediation for Lamar Signs 

 

                                                       

4. REPORT STANDING COMMITTEES: 
   A. FINANCE COMMITTEE / Conaway  

        Review minutes / May 13
th

  

        1. Ordinances: 

            a. Appropriation of Funds:  Fire Engine #4 #822 Repair  /  Ordinance 2013-28  

    b. Appropriation of Funds:  Mobile Bay National Estuary Program Community Contribution /  

                     Ordinance 2013-29      

      

     2. Resolutions: 

    a. Bid Award: 2013-M- City Hall Roof Restoration / Kiker Corporation / Resolution 2013-33  

 

        3. Financial Reports: 

    a. Treasurers Report / April 30, 2013 

   b. Sales Tax Collections / March 31, 2013 

    c. Lodging Tax Collections / March 31, 2013 

 

  B.  BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE-  Davis    

 

 

 

1



 

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                                MAY 20, 2013                               PAGE   2 

 

        

 C.   PUBLIC SAFETY -  Rudicell  

        Review minutes / May 8
th

  

        MOTION:  To authorize the Police Department to apply for an SRO Grant and authorize the Mayor to  

                             sign the grant application 

 

 D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  - Fry   

        Review minutes / May 8
th

  

        MOTION:  Set a Public Hearing Date for June 3, 2013 to consider the Public Indecency Ordinance,  

                             and authorize advertising of Public Hearing 

 

 E.  PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY  -  LeJeune       

       Review minutes / April 15
th

  

       Review Beautification minutes / May 1
st
  

    

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  
   A.  Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

         Review minutes / January 3
rd

  

         Appoint Philip Durant (Alternate Supernumerary)to replace Jim Moss / Term to end July 2015 

         Re-appoint Larry Cook / Term to end May 2016 

         Nomination:   1
st
 Alternate Supernumerary position:  William E. Scully / Term to end May 2016 

           

   B.  Downtown Redevelopment Authority - Conaway  

        Review minutes / April 24
th

  

 

  C.  Industrial Development Board – Davis 

  D.  Library Board  - Lake 

  E.  Planning Commission – Scott   

        Review minutes / March 28
th

  

        Set a Public Hearing date for June 17, 2013 , and authorize advertising to consider: 

          

        Rezoning:     Earth, Inc. 

        Location:       Southwest of the intersection of Park Drive and Tallent Lane, east of the   

                                                Daphne Sports Complex 

        Present Zoning:  R-3, High Density Single Family Residential District 

       Requested Zoning: R6 (G) , Garden or Patio Homes  

        Recommendation: Motion Failed to set forth an unfavorable recommendation which is  

                              No recommendation 

 

  F.  Recreation Board  -  LeJeune 

       Review minutes / April 10
th

  

   

  G. Utility Board - Fry   

 

6.  REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

     A.  Mayors Report 

          a.  Parade Permit / Christ the King / Annual Pilgrimage Walk / June 1, 2013 

          b.  Parade Permit / Arthritis Foundation / Annual 5K and 1 Mile Fun Run / December 7, 2013 

 

2



 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA                           MAY 20, 2013                                         PAGE   3 

 

 

    B.  City Attorney’s Report 

    C.  Department Head Comments 

         City Clerk Report:   

           

 

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION:   

 

 

   

8. RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 
   

  RESOLUTIONS: 

 

a.)  Declaring Certain Property Surplus. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-31 

 

b.)  Acceptance of Streets & Drainage / Dunmore Subdivision . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-32 

 

c.)  Bid Award: City Hall Roof Restoration / Kiker Corporation . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Resolution 2013-33          

 

 

 

 

 ORDINANCES:         

      

        2
ND

  READ 

a.)  Appropriation of Funds: Fiscal 2013 Capital & Personnel. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-25 

 

b.)   Amendments to Pay Plan, Hiring Practices and Pay Raise Policy. . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-26 

 

      

       1
ST

 READ 

c.)   Annexation:  GCOF  Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-27 

 

d.)   Appropriation of Funds: Williams Property Acquisition and 

        Remediation for Yancey Branch Sediment. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-28 

 

e.)   Appropriation of Funds: Mobile Bay National Estuary 

        Program Community Contribution. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-29 

 

f.)    Regulating Solicitation. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-30 

 

 

9.   COUNCIL COMMENTS        

10.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

 

COUNCILWOMAN CONAWAY    PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LAKE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN FRY      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

COUNCILMAN DAVIS     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD     PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES      PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS       PRESENT___  ABSENT___ 

4



 

MAY 6, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e1
 

1.    CALL TO ORDER:  

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL/INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGAINCE: 

Dr. Robert C. McKibben from the Daphne United Methodist Church gave the invocation. 

 

3.    COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:    
Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell, John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis,  III. 

 

Also present:  Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; David 

Carpenter, Police Chief; James White, Fire Chief; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Richard Johnson, Public 

Works Director; Michael Hoyt, Municipal Judge; Suzanne Henson, Senior Accountant; Richard 

Merchant, Building Official; Tonja Young, Library Director; Joey Holasz, Fire Department; 

Willie Robison, BZA; Selena Vaughn, Beautification Committee; Tomasina Werner, 

Beautification Committee.; Joe Lemoine, Planning Commission; Kyle Navarro, Attorney, 

Adams & Reese. 

Absent:  Kim Briley, Finance Director; Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Development;. 

 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES: 

April 15, 2013 Council meeting minutes  

 

The April 15, 2013 Council meeting minutes were amended to remove Council President Scott 

as opening the meeting as he was absent.  The minutes stand approved as amended. 

 

PRESENTATION:  Graduates of Huntingdon College  

There were 15 graduates, and five (5) were present to be recognized for their accomplishment. 

 

PRESENTATION:   Beautification Award 

 

The Beautification Committee presented the award to Baldwin Bone and Joint.  Mr. Carlisle 

accepted the award. 

 

 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

      A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Conaway 

The next meeting will be Monday, May 13
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

 

5



 

MAY 6, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e2
 

      B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE -  Davis 

The committee met at 5:30 p.m. today, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

      C.   PUBLIC SAFETY  COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The minutes for the April 10
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The committee discussed installing a 

speed bump on College Avenue.  The next meeting will be Wednesday. 

 

      D.   CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The next meeting will be Wednesday after the Public Safety meeting.  The committee will be 

discussing some business ordinances, and the Animal Control ordinance where all the 

amendments have been combined into one ordinance. 

 

      E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The next meeting will be May 13
th

 at 5:00 p.m.. 

 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMITTSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

Mr. Willie Robison, Chairman of the BZA reported that the board met to consider two (2) 

appeals, and both were denied.  The will not be a meeting in June. 

 

      B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

The Authority met on April 24
th

, and the minutes will be in the next packet. 

 

      C.   Industrial Development Board – Davis 

The board had a special meeting April 30
th

, and the minutes are in the packet.  The board will be 

reviewing current operating procedures and the by-laws to make sure they are current. 

 

      D.   Library Board – Lake 

The next meeting will be Thursday at 4:00 p.m. 

 

      E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The Commission met last Thursday, and the minutes will be in the packet after they are 

approved. A rezoning will be coming to council for approval. 

 

      F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

No report. 

 

      G.   Utility Board – Fry 

The minutes from the February 27
th

 meeting are in the packet. The audit report was excellent for 

the utilities thanks to the staff and chairman of the board. 

6



 

MAY 6, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e3
 

6.    REPORTS OF OFFICERS: 

       A.  Mayor’s Report 
 

a.) MOTION:  Due to the exceptional job qualifications of a Children’s Librarian     

                     candidate, the Mayor is authorized to negotiate the beginning salary of the  

                     position within Job Grade 18 not to exceed Step 6.    
 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake that due to the exceptional job qualifications of a 

Children’s Librarian candidate, the Mayor is authorized to negotiate the beginning salary 

of the position within Job Grade 18 not to exceed Step 6.  Seconded by  Councilwoman 

Conaway. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

            b.)  MOTION: 

                a.)  To recognize a special occasion “The 180 Day Promotional Period for  

                      Commercial and Retail Establishments”:   

 

The City Council recognizes the economic recession and the on-going impacts 

of the economic down-turn as it relates to businesses in the City of Daphne.  

The City Council hereby  recognizes “The 180 Day Promotional Period for 

Commercial and Retail Establishments” beginning on May 30, 2013 and 

ending November 26, 2013.  This motion may be rescinded in the future in the 

event new Sign Provisions are adopted as part of the Land Use & 

Development Ordinance. 

 

MOTION BY Council LeJeune To recognize a special occasion “The 180 Day Promotional 

Period for Commercial and Retail Establishments”:   

 

The City Council to recognizes the economic recession and the on-going impacts of the  

economic down-turn as it relates to businesses in the City of Daphne.  The City Council 

hereby  recognizes “The 180 Day Promotional Period for Commercial and Retail 

Establishments” beginning on May 30, 2013 and ending November 26, 2013.  This motion 

may be rescinded in the future in the event new Sign Provisions are adopted as part of the 

Land Use & Development Ordinance.   Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR   NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

           

 

7



 

MAY 6, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e4
 

    b.)  MOTION:  To exercise the authority of the City Council granted by Section 33-5(e)(1) of  

the Land Use & Development Ordinance 2011-54: 

The City Council has determined that “The 180 Promotional Period for Commercial and Retail 

Establishments” and it is hereby designated by the City Council as an occasion to allow the 

following temporary promotional signs for commercial and retail establishments:  temporary  

signs and banners not exceeding fifty (50) feet in area, temporary decorative flags, tethered 

inflatable items, bunting, pennants and streamers as provided in Section 33-5(e)(1) of the Land Use 

& Development Ordinance 2011-54. 

  

Therefore, temporary signs and banners, temporary decorative flags, tethered items, bunting, 

pennants and streamers are authorized in the City of Daphne each Friday at 12:00 noon a.m. 

through Sunday at 11:59 p.m. beginning May30, 2013 and ending November 26, 2013.  This 

motion does not suspend or replace any provisions of the sign ordinance, and reiterates that all  

other requirements of the sing ordinance remain under stringent and uniform enforcement.  Each 

must meet all other requirements and provisions of the Land Use and Development  Ordinance 

2011-54.  This motion may be rescinded in the future in the event  new Sign Provisions are adopted 

as part of the Land Use & Development Ordinance. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune To exercise the authority of the City Council granted by 

Section 33-5(e)(1) of  the Land Use & Development Ordinance 2011-54: 

The City Council has determined that “The 180 Promotional Period for Commercial and 

Retail Establishments” and it is hereby designated by the City Council as an occasion to allow 

the following temporary promotional signs for commercial and retail establishments:  

temporary  

signs and banners not exceeding fifty (50) feet in area, temporary decorative flags, tethered 

inflatable items, bunting, pennants and streamers as provided in Section 33-5(e)(1) of the 

Land Use & Development Ordinance 2011-54. 

  

Therefore, temporary signs and banners, temporary decorative flags, tethered items, bunting, 

pennants and streamers are authorized in the City of Daphne each Friday at 12:00 noon a.m. 

through Sunday at 11:59 p.m. beginning May30, 2013 and ending November 26, 2013.  This 

motion does not suspend or replace any provisions of the sign ordinance, and reiterates that 

all  other requirements of the sing ordinance remain under stringent and uniform 

enforcement.  Each must meet all other requirements and provisions of the Land Use and 

Development  Ordinance 2011-54.  This motion may be rescinded in the future in the event  

new Sign Provisions are adopted as part of the Land Use & Development Ordinance.  

Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

8



 

MAY 6, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e5
 

              c.)  MOTION:  Extend New Cingular Wireless, PCS, LLC Temporary Site   

                                        License (COW) 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to authorize the Mayor to enter into an extended contract 

with AT&T for the COW.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

    

 

   B.  City Attorney’s Report 

Mr. Ross asked council to adjourn into Executive Session at the end of the meeting to discuss 

pending litigation, and buying and selling of real property.  No vote will be required.  The 

session will take about an hour. 

 

     C.   Department Head Comments 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – reported that they made an arrest in the murder at the Eastern 

Shore Motel.  The suspect confessed. 

 

James White – Fire Chief – reported that the new fire truck has been delivered, and is at Sunbelt 

for stripping.  

 

Tonja Young – Library Director – reported the Summer Reading Program will kick off June 3
rd

.  

She thanked council for the hiring motion for the Children’s Librarian. 

 

Michael Hoyt – Municipal Judge – reported that they have had an intern from Faulkner working 

on a degree in criminal justice that has been helping out.  They can now accept credit cards. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director -  reported the Rec Board will meet Wednesday, May 8
th

 

at 6:30 p.m. Brown Bag by the Bay will be Thursday from 11:30-1:30 at May Day Park.    The 

Sunday Series will May 19
th

 with the Mobile Big Band, and will be the last one for the season. 

 

Margaret Thigpen – Civic Center Director – reported that the Baldwin County Economic 

Development Alliance Job Fair is tomorrow with 51 vendors.  Friday is Ballroom Dance.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

9



 

MAY 6, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e6
 

City Clerk Report – Rebecca Hayes 
a.) Parade Permit / Lupus Foundation / Fund Raiser / March 15, 2014 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to approve the Parade Permit for the Lupus Foundation / 

Fund Raiser / March 15, 2014   Seconded by Councilman Davis. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

7.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION: 

Mr. Kevin Spriggs – Owner of the Eastern Shore Motel -  appreciates the work done by the 

Police Department in apprehending the assailant in the murder that took place at his motel.  He 

supports Public Safety saying the more officers that are on the street cuts down crime. 

 

Mr. Willie Robison – 560 Stuart Street – spoke regarding the last Honor Flight for this area, and 

encouraged everyone to go out to meet the plane on its return. 

 

8.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

         

       RESOLUTIONS: 
a.)   Authorize Applying for 2013 Transportation Enhancement        

        and 2013 Transportation Alternative Program Grants . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Resolution 2013-30 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman Conaway to waive the reading of Resolution 2013-30.  

Seconded by Councilman Lake 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilwoman  Conaway to adopt Resolution 2013-30.  Seconded by 

Councilman Lake. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

       ORDINANCES: 
       

       2
nd

  READ  

a.)  An Ordinance to Control Public and Private 

       Outdoor Lighting . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-23 

10



 

MAY 6, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e7
 

     1
ST

 READ 

b.)  Appropriation of Funds: Fiscal 2013 Capital & Personnel. . . . . . . . ./Ordinance 2013-25 

c.)   Amendments to Pay Scale Plan,  Hiring Practices  

and Pay Raises. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . /Ordinance 2013-26 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to waive the reading of Ordinance 2013-23.  Seconded by 

Councilman Davis. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinance 2013-23.  Seconded by Councilman 

Davis. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to amend the agenda to include Ordinance 2013-26 

regarding Revision to Employee Pay Scale.  Seconded by Council  LeJeune. 

 

ROLL CALL VOTE 
 

Conaway  Aye    LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye    Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye    Scott   Aye 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

ORDINANCES 2013-25 AND 2013-26 ARE 1
ST

 READ. 
 

 

9.    COUNCIL COMMENTS: 

Mayor Haygood congratulated Adrienne Jones on he 18
th

 wedding anniversary, and the Police 

Department on the homicide investigation.  He spoke to Hoss Mack with the Baldwin County 

Sheriffs Department and he was very complimentary of Judd Beedy and Jason Vannoy.  He 

thanked Reverend McKibben for their involvement with the National Day of Prayer Celebration 

11



 

MAY 6, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 
 

P
ag

e8
 

at City Hall.  He said a special thanks to Mrs. Jewel Lawson for the luncheon for the city employees held 

today.  She has been doing that for 10 years.  He thanked Richard Johnson for applying for the 

Transportation Enhancement grant. He reported the Relay for Life Team raised $6,000, and thanked Jay 

Ross for donating a TV for raffle, and those that contributed through payroll deduction.  He thanked 

everyone that was involved with the event. 

 

Councilman Lake congratulated Mrs. Conaway for breaking the record with a 36 minute council 

meeting. 

 

Councilman Fry reported that the Baldwin Pops Sunset Series was well attended. He said there was great 

staff participation.  He invited all to the last show.  He has been to a return of the Honor Flight, and it is 

something to be seen. 

 

Councilman Davis commented on organizations within the city that helps people.  The YMCA helps 

young people and families.  He encouraged all to support the organizations that are benefiting the 

community. 

 

10.   ADJOURN: 

MOTION BY Councilman Fry to adjourn into Executive Session to discuss pending litigation and 

the  purchase of real property. 

The City Attorney certified that the foregoing reasons were appropriate reasons to enter into 

Executive Session according to the Open Meetings Act.  The session will last one (1) hour. 

Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

ROLL CALL VOTE  

Conaway  Aye   LeJeune  Aye 

Rudicell  Aye   Davis   Aye 

Lake   Aye   Scott   Aye 

Fry   Aye 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR          NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 

 7:30 P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,              Certification of Presiding Officer,    

 

                                                     

__________________________________   _____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk     Ron Scott, Council President      

12



MAY 13, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

1 

 

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune; Joe Davis.  

 

 

Also present: Mayor Dane Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Jay Ross, City Attorney; Richard 

Johnson, Public Works Director; Adrienne Jones, Director of Community Development; Vickie 

Hinman, Human Resources Director;  Margaret Thigpen, Civic Center; Joe Lemoine, Planning 

Commission; Tomasina Werner, Beautification Committee; Selena Vaughn, Beautification 

Committee. 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Scott called the meeting to order at 6:33 p.m. 

 

 

1. ACTION ITEMS UPDATE: 

A. Strategic Plan / Councilman Davis 

Six steps to creating a Strategic Plan: 

a. Information collection 

b. Participants 

c. Purpose for Strategic Plan 

d. Vision for the city 

e. Guiding principals 

f. Goals and objectives 

 

Goals: 

1. To be financial sustainable / Respond to core services and infrastructure 

2. Neighborhood integrity 

3. Diverse growing economy 

4. Green sustainable city 

5. Best place to live 

 

He would need input from the Mayor, Council, city staff, and agencies that benefits and impacts the 

city.  

 

Council President Scott stated that they need to come up with the next action  He asked councilman 

Davis to work with the Mayor to come up with citizens to help with the Strategic Plan. 

 

Mayor Haygood feels that this is not fostering interaction with council, and he would like to see have 

recurring meetings with council, maybe bi-weekly, to advance discussion. 

 

1. Nicholson Center / Councilman Lake 

Councilman Lake will meet with someone on Thursday regarding utilizing the building. 

 

      

13



MAY 13, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

2 

 

      3.    Grants / Councilwoman Conaway 
Councilwoman Conaway stated that the grant class that she, Councilman Lake and the City Clerk, 

Rebecca Hayes, are taking is almost finished there is only a couple more classes.  She spoke to the 

Mayor on the need to get others that have obtained grants for the city and pool resources to apply for 

grants for the city. 

 

 

2. SIGN ORDINANCE REVIEW / MAYOR HAYGOOD 

Councilman Lake again urged the council that this needs to go to a committee. 

 

Council discussed what path to take regarding revisions to sign provisions. 

 

Consensus of Council was to have a motion on the agenda for Monday to appoint a committee to 

review the sign provisions of the Land Use ordinance, and to put a 60 day limit for their 

recommendations.  Each council member will nominate one (1) person to be appointed to the 

committee. 

 

3. EMPLOYEE PAY SCALE ORDINANCE / MAYOR HAYGOOD 

Mayor Haygood answered question from council regarding the revision to the employee pay scale 

ordinance. 

 

No consensus from council. 

 

4.  SRO GRANT / POLICE DEPARTMENT / COUNCILMAN RUDICELL 

Councilman Rudicell stated that this grant would be a 75/25 match for hiring two (2) officers for 

three (3) years at a cost of approximately $77,000. 

 

Consensus of Council was to have a motion authorizing the Mayor to sign off on the SRO grant ffor 

the Police Department on Monday’s agenda.  

 

5. WHATEVER ELSE IS DEEMED NECESSARY 

a.)  Purchase of Williams Property 

There is now a signed contract for the Williams property for $96,000. 

 

Council discussed which funding source to take the funds for the purchase the General Fund or 

Lodging Tax. 

 

Consensus of the Council was to have a motion on the agenda for Monday to use funds from the 

General Fund for the purchase of the property. 

 

 

 

 

 

14



MAY 13, 2013 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

 

3 

 

 

6.  ADJOURN 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:53 p.m. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,       

                                                     

                               

___________________________                                                                                        

Rebecca A. Hayes,                                                                     

City Clerk                                                                                                                                             

       Certification of Presiding Officer:   

 

 

       ________________________________      

      Ron Scott,     

      Council President   

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



 

PUBLIC HEARING  

FOR COUNCIL MEETING 

MAY 20, 2013 

 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 

 

 
        Annexation:                    GCOF The Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC 

 

        Location:                         Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee  

                                                 Boulevard and County Road 13 

 

        Present Zoning:               RSF-2, Single Family District, Baldwin County 

 

        Requested Zoning:          R-2, Medium Density Single Family              

                                                 Residential District, City of Daphne 

 

        Recommendation:          Favorable 

 

 

 

 

 

27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

STANDING COMMITTEES 

51



CITY OF DAPHNE 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MINUTES 
MAY 13, 2013 

4:00 P.M. 
 
I.      CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
 

The meeting was called to order at 4:00 pm.  Present were Chairperson Mrs. Conaway, Councilman 
Ron Scott, Councilman Joseph Davis, Finance Director Kim Briley, Deputy Finance Director Christine 
Ciancetta,  Senior Accountant Suzânne Henson and Accounting Technician Sue Moody. 
 
Councilman John Lake arrived at 4:20. 
 
Also in attendance were Human Resource Director Vickie Hinman, Public Works Director Richard 
Johnson,  Fire Dept Chief White, Civic Center Director Margaret Thigpen, Mayor Haygood, Erosion 
Director  Ashley Campbell and Building Maint Supervisor Frank Barnett.                       . 
 
 

II.      PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
A.  Mobile Bay National Estuary Program-Ms. Roberta Swan-FY13 & FY14 Community Contribution 

 
Ms. Swan discussed the appropriation request from MBNEP and discussed their ongoing projects.  
Ms. Swan noted that MBNEP is researching what people value in relation to the area’s coastal 
resources and addressing those areas of interest and need.  Ms. Swan noted that they are working on 
the Joe’s Branch Project and are essentially complete.  Ms. Swan stated that they are coordinating 
work being done by municipalities together along with Alabama Restoration Council so that everyone 
is working on projects together. 

 
Councilman Scott asked what other funds the MBNEP receives annually.  Ms. Swan responded that 
previously they were getting $600,000 from EPA but that amount has been cut to $512,000 this year.  
Ms. Swan noted that they have to match the EPA funds dollar for dollar.  MBNEP also receives 
$60,000-$70,000 from the State of Alabama, and $25,000 from Mobile County and City of Mobile 
each.  Ms. Swan noted that Baldwin County provides In-Kind services.    

  

Motion by Councilman Ron Scott to appropriate $ 10,000 from Fiscal 2013 Lodging 
Taxes as a contribution to the Mobile Bay National Estuary Program (MBNEP) and 
additionally to consider a $ 10,000 contribution in the Fiscal 2014 budget.  Seconded 
by Councilman Joe Davis. Motion carried. 
 
 

III.    HUMAN RESOURCES BUSINESS 
 

A.  Update on Human Resources Department Activity 
      Ms. Vickie Hinman reviewed the Human Resource Report including open position status. 
Positions      Status 
Asst. City Clerk     Interviewing 
Fire Fighter      Written Test  
Police Officer (2)        Background 
Children’s Librarian      Pre-employment Process 
Accounting Technician    Interviewing 
Admin. Tech  (Mechanical)    Posting: 5/1-5/8 
Solid Waste Worker     Posting: 5/1-5/15 

52



Finance Minutes.doc  2  

 
Safety Committee Meeting: Drawing for Safety Awards for the previous year.  The recipients were 

Chief David Carpenter and Kerri Elliott (Mechanical).  The committee was informed and discussed the 
bleachers at Lott Park needing safety improvements.  

 
 
Ms. Hinman discussed other Human Resources’ projects/meetings and noted that the Kronos 
upgrade was complete and as of  5/7/2013.  Ms. Hinman noted that the meeting was held with the 

City’s Short Term Disability Insurance representative and noted there are potential savings and long-
term benefits options available for the City.  More information will be presented to the Committee in 
June. 
 
 

IV. CURRENT BUSINESS 
 

A.  Financial Reports 

 
1.  Treasurer’s Report:  April 30, 2013 

    The Treasurer’s Report totaling $ 18,575,570.17  was presented by Ms. Conaway.   
 

    Mr. Scott asked if the balance was down due to payouts for construction projects.  Ms. Briley 
answered yes. 
 

Motion by Councilman Scott to accept the Treasurer’s Report and file for audit as of 
April 30, 2013, in the amount of $ 18,575,570.17.  Seconded by Councilman Davis.  
Motion carried. 
 
 

2.  Sales and Use Taxes: March 30, 2013-    $1,181,007.55 
Ms. Briley reviewed the Sales and Use Tax Reports.  Ms. Briley noted that Sales Tax collections were 
up $351,262 YTD. 
 

3.  Lodging Tax Collections, March 30, 2013 -   $64,325.47 
Ms. Briley reviewed the Lodging Tax Collections Report.  Ms. Briley also presented a summary of 
information requested for the Lodging Tax Fund.   
 
Ms. Briley also discussed the history of the fund. Total outstanding debt for the 2002 property 
purchase was refunded in 2012 and noted the maturity date was not shortened; it remains 2032.  (this 
was done while Ms. Briley was out on sick leave)  Ms. Briley summarized that the total debt due is 
Principal- $2,205,000 and Interest - $816,678.  Annual debt service is approx. $ 153,000. 
 
 Ms. Briley reviewed the Recreation “Loan” Ordinances which have been adopted appropriating 
$1,708,558 for various Recreation/Parks projects at the new Sports Plex.  To date $1,114,803 has 
been expended and $704,053 has been reimbursed.  The net loan due for reimbursement to the 
General Fund is currently $410,750 with an additional $593,756 available for completion of the on-
going projects.  The full loan is estimated to be paid back no earlier than FY2017.  
 

4. Report: New Business Licenses – April 2013   
The New Business License Report was presented showing 58 new businesses and 3 businesses 
closed. 
        

5.  Bills Paid Reports – April 2013 
The Bills Paid Report was reviewed. 

 

53



Finance Minutes.doc  3  

 

B. Appropriation Request:  (Ordinance) 
    

1.  Fire Engine #4 -2000 Freightliner-FL80(Vehicle #822) - Engine Repair Estimated $15,000 
 

Discussion was made that an emergency appropriation in the amount of $15,000 was need to repair a 
2000 Freightliner truck for the Fire Department.  Ms. Henson noted that she had spoken with the 
City’s mechanic, Duke Crutchfield and he had received a preliminary quote that the cost should not 
exceed $15,000.  Ms. Henson noted that if the final quote does exceed $15,000 the repair would need 
to be declared an emergency by Council or be bid out.  Discussion continued that since this repair is 
critical to the Fire Department’s daily operations the rules would need to be suspended to adopt an 
Ordinance on the first read so funds could be appropriated.  It was noted by Councilman Scott that the 
Public Safety Committee recommended these repairs. 
 

Motion by Councilman Ron Scott to recommend to Council to adopt an Ordinance to 
appropriate $15,000 for an emergency repair for the 2000 Freightliner FL80 (Veh #822).  
Seconded by Councilman John Lake.   Motion carried.  
 
Additionally, if final quotes on the project exceed $ 15,000 it is recommended that the 
Council declare the repairs an emergency, as time is of the essence for getting this fire 
truck back in operation.  Motion carried. 
 
 

C. Bids:(Resolution)   
 

1.   2013-M-City Hall Roof Restoration (Resolution)  
Ms. Henson noted that the bid for the City Hall Roof Restoration opened this morning and the minutes 
and recommendation are included in the handout.  The recommendation is to award the low bidder 
Kiker in the amount of base bid - $71,560.99 and $2,400 alternate add on and stated square foot cost 
for replacement of deteriorated wood.  The completed project is estimated to be under $85,000.  Mr. 
Johnson noted that these monies are included in the FY2013 New Capital Requests list that will be 
voted on by Council at the next Council meeting. 
 

Motion by Councilman Ron Scott to recommend to Council to award the City Hall Roof 
Restoration bid to Kiker Corporation for a base bid of $71,560.99 with bid alternates 
unit costs as bid.  Seconded by Councilman John Lake.   Motion carried. 
 

 
D. Nicholson Center Roof Repair 
Mr. Richard Johnson discussed that quote had been obtained for the Nicholson Center roof repair and 
that monies were included in the FY2013 New Capital Requests list that will be voted on by Council at 
the next Council meeting.  The estimated cost for the project is $45,000.   

 
  

V. OLD BUSINESS 
No old business was discussed. 
      
 

VI. ADJOURN   
 
Meeting was adjourned at 4:38. 

54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



Ordinance Committee 

 Wednesday, May 8, 2013 

1705 Main Street 

Daphne, AL 

5:30 p.m. 
        

Councilman Randy Fry, Chairman       

Councilman Ron Scott                                                                  

Councilman Robin LeJeune 

Councilman Pat Rudicell 

       CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
I. CALL TO ORDER: 

 Chairman Fry called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

 

 MEMBERS PRESENT:  Randy Fry, Chairman; Pat Rudicell; Ron Scott; Robin LeJeune.                                               

 

Also present:  Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Captain Danny Bell; Ms. Lynn Williams 

Cook. 

 

II.  APPROVE MINUTES  / MARCH 27, 2013 

 

Motion by Councilman Scott to approve the March 27, 2013 minutes.  Seconded by  

Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    AL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOPSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

Ms. Lynn Cook -  asked how it was decided that Lucy’s Love Shop came under Adult 

Entertainment. 

 

 

III.      ANIMAL CONTROL ORDINANCE / KYLE NAVARRO 

Kyle discussed the changes to the ordinance with the committee.   

 

Discussion was held regarding why tethering dogs was deleted from the ordinance along with the 

fines making it illegal.  They asked about tethering your dog while you were working in the yard 

and you go in to get a drink of water will you get fined. 

           

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to carry the ordinance over for further revisions.  

Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

IV.  SOLICITATION ORDINANCE / KYLE NAVARRO 

The Solicitation Ordinance was revised to say that anyone other than non-exempt entities can go 

from door to door. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to recommend, and send to Council the Solicitation 

Ordinance and the amended Animal Control Ordinance by Kyle for adoption.    Seconded 

by  Councilman LeJeune. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

73



ORDINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING                                                               PAGE  2 

 

  

V. BICYCLE ORDINANCE     

Kyle reported that Mr. Scroggins, the City Prosecutor, said this ordinances was a bad idea, an the 

Municipal Judge said that it was harmful. 

 

Discussion was held, and the consensus of the committee was to  have  Councilman Scott and 

Councilman Fry discuss the ordinance with the City Prosecutor, Mr. Scroggins, and report back 

next month.  

 

VI. ADULT ENTERTAINMENT & TATTOO PARLOR ORDINANCE / KYLE NAVARRO 
Kyle discussed the ordinance with the committee. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to recommend and forward the Adult Entertainment 

Ordinance to Council set  a Public Hearing.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR            NAY    NONE OPPOSED            MOTION CARRIED 

 

  

VII.         OTHER BUSINESS 

No other business to discuss.  

 

 

VIII.   ADJOURN 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Council Rudicell. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR         NAY    NONE OPPOSED          MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 6:25 p.m.  

 

 

 

Respectfully submitted 

 

 

Code Enforcement / Ordinance Committee 

74



 

 

SET DATE FOR PUBLIC HEARING  

 

JUNE 3, 2013 
 

TO CONSIDER: 

 

 

 
         

PUBLIC INDECENCY ORDINANCE 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

75



 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-____ 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

AN ORDINANCE TO REPEAL ORDINANCE NO. 2003-09  

CONCERNING PUBLIC INDECENCY 

________________________________________________________________________ 

 

WHEREAS, based on the evidence contained in Jules B. Gerard & Scott D. Bergthold, 

Local Regulation of Adult Businesses (2013 ed.) along with the studies and court cases cited 

therein, the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that Adult Entertainment 

Establishments (hereinafter defined) have negative secondary effects and are often associated 

with crime, the downgrading of property values and sexual exploitation;  

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne desires to minimize the negative 

secondary effects of Adult Entertainment Establishments in order to protect the public health, 

safety and welfare of the citizens, preserve the quality of life, property values and character of 

the City of Daphne and deter the spread of urban blight; 

WHEREAS it is the intent of the City Council of the City of Daphne to enact a content-

neutral ordinance regulating Adult Entertainment Establishments to further a compelling 

governmental interest of minimizing the negative secondary effects of Adult Entertainment 

Establishments in the City of Daphne; and 

WHEREAS it is not the intent of the City Council of the City of Daphne to suppress any 

speech activities protected by the United States Constitution or the Alabama Constitution. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

PUBLIC INDECENCY 

(a) 

Definitions. As used in this section, the following words and terms shall have the 

following meanings: 

Adult Bookstore. An establishment which, as one of its Principal Business 

Purposes, offers for sale or rental books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, 

or photographs, films, motion pictures, videocassettes, slides, tapes, records, compact 

disks or other form of visual or audio representations which are distinguished or 

characterized by their emphasis on matters depicting, describing or relating to Nudity. 

Adult Cabaret. A nightclub, bar, theater, concert hall, auditorium, restaurant or 

similar establishment which, having as a preponderance of its entertainment or staff, live 

performances or appearances by Topless females. 

Adult Entertainment Establishment. Adult Bookstores, Adult Cabarets, Adult 

Novelty Stores, Adult Theaters or Tattoo Facilities. 

Adult Novelty Store. An establishment which, as one of its Principal Business 

Purposes, offers for sale or rental books, magazines, periodicals or other printed matter, 

or photographs, films, motion pictures, videocassettes, slides, tapes, records, compact 

disks or other form of visual or audio representations or instruments, devices or  

76



 

ORDINANCE 2013-                                       PUBLIC INDECENCY                              PAGE  2 

 

paraphernalia which are distinguished or characterized by their emphasis on matter 

depicting, describing or relating to Nudity. 

Adult Theater. A commercial establishment where, for any form of consideration, 

films, motion pictures, or other photographic reproductions are regularly shown which 

are distinguished or characterized by their emphasis on matters depicting, describing or 

relating to Nudity. 

Distinguished or characterized by.  To be “distinguished or characterized by” 

means the essential character or quality of an item.  As applied in this ordinance, no 

business shall be classified as an Adult Entertainment Establishment by virtue of 

showing, selling, or renting materials rated NC-17 or R by the Motion Picture 

Association of America. 

Nude (Nudity). The showing, display or appearance of: 

(1) 

All or any part of the human male or female genitals, pubic area or anus 

with less than a fully opaque covering; 

(2) 

More than two-thirds (2/3) of the buttocks of the human male or female 

with less than a fully opaque covering; 

(3) 

Any portion of the human female areola or nipple with less than a fully 

opaque covering; or 

(4) 

The covered male genitals in a discernibly turgid state. 

Principal Business Purpose. A business purpose shall be a Principal Business 

Purpose if said purpose accounts for thirty five percent (35%) of the business’: 

(1) 

Displayed merchandise; 

  (2) 

   Wholesale or retail value of displayed merchandise; 

  (3) 

    Revenues; or 

  (4) 

   Interior business space. 

Public Place. Means any location which is frequently by the public, or where the 

public is present or likely to be present, or where a person may reasonably be expected to 

be observed by members of the public or is otherwise visible to members of the public. 

Public Places include, but are not limited to, streets, sidewalks, parks, beaches, business 

and commercial establishments (whether for profit or not-for-profit and whether open to 

the public at large or whether entrance is limited by age restrictions, cover charges, or 

membership requirements), bottle clubs, hotels, motels, restaurants, night clubs, country  

77



 

ORDINANCE 2013-                                       PUBLIC INDECENCY                              PAGE  3 

 

clubs, cabarets and meeting facilities utilized by any religious, social, fraternal, charitable 

or other organizations. Premises used solely as a private residence, whether permanent or 

temporary in nature, shall not be deemed a Public Place. Public Place shall not include 

enclosed single sex public restrooms, enclosed single sex functional showers, locker 

and/or dressing room facilities, enclosed motel rooms and hotel rooms designed and 

intended for sleeping accommodations, doctor's offices, portions of hospitals and similar 

places in which Nudity or exposure is necessarily and customarily expected outside of the 

home and the sphere of privacy constitutionally protected herein. 

Tattoo Facility. The geographic location at which an individual does one or more 

of the following for compensation: 

(1) 

Places an indelible mark upon the body of another individual by the 

insertion of a pigment in or under the skin. 

(2) 

Places an indelible design upon the body of another individual by 

production of scars. 

(3) 

 The perforation of human tissue other than ear for a nonmedical purpose. 

Topless. The exposing of any portion of the human female breast below a 

horizontal line across the top or the areola at its highest point or simulation thereof 

excluding any portion of the cleavage of the human female breast exhibited by a dress, 

blouse, shirt, leotard, bathing suit or outerwear apparel. 

(b)  

Public indecency. It shall be unlawful for any person in a Public Place in the 

corporate limits or police jurisdiction of the City of Daphne to knowingly, 

intentionally or recklessly: 

(1) 

Engage in actual or simulated sexual intercourse, masturbation, sodomy, 

bestiality, oral copulation, flagellation, excretory functions; 

(2) 

Appear or suffer or permit another person to appear Nude or in a state of 

Nudity; 

(3) 

Fondle, touch or otherwise come in direct or indirect contact with the 

genitals of himself, herself, or another person; or 

(4) 

Fondle, touch or otherwise come in direct or indirect contact with the 

female breasts of another person or to permit another person fondling, 

touching or otherwise coming in direct or indirect contact with a female's 

breasts. 

78



 

ORDINANCE 2013-                                       PUBLIC INDECENCY                              PAGE  2 

 

(c) 

Public indecency in establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages. 

(1) 

No person shall expose, show or display to public view his or her genitals, 

pubic area, vulva, anus, anal clef or cleavage or any simulation of such act 

in an establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages. 

(2) 

No female person shall appear topless in an establishment dealing in 

alcoholic beverages. 

(3) 

No person maintaining, owning or operating an establishment dealing in 

alcoholic beverages shall suffer or permit any person to expose, show or 

display to the public view his or her genitals, pubic area, vulva, anus, anal 

clef or cleavage or simulation of such act within the establishments 

dealing in alcoholic beverages. 

(4) 

No person maintaining, owning or operating an establishment dealing in 

alcoholic beverages shall suffer or permit any female person to appear 

Topless within the establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages. 

(5) 

No person shall engage in and no person maintaining, owning or operating 

an establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages shall suffer or permit any 

sexual intercourse, masturbation, sodomy, bestiality, oral copulation, 

flagellation, any sexual act which is prohibited by law, touching, caressing 

or fondling of the breasts, buttocks, anus or genitals or the simulation of 

such acts within an establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages. 

(6) 

No person shall cause and no person maintaining, owning or operating an 

establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages shall suffer or permit the 

exposition of any graphic representation, including, but not limited to, 

pictures or the projection of film or image, which depicts human genitals, 

pubic area, vulva, anus, anal cleft or cleavage, Topless female(s), sexual 

intercourse, masturbation, sodomy, bestiality, oral copulation, flagellation, 

any sexual act prohibited by law, touching, caressing or fondling of the 

breasts, buttocks, anus or genitals or any simulation of such acts within 

any establishment dealing in alcoholic beverages. 

 

 

 

79



 

ORDINANCE 2013-                                       PUBLIC INDECENCY                              PAGE  4 

 

(d) 

Adult Entertainment Establishments location requirements. 

(1) 

Adult Entertainment Establishments are prohibited: 

a. 

Within one thousand (1,000) feet of any residential zone or any 

single family or multiple-family residential use. 

b. 

Within one thousand (1,000) feet of any public or private 

elementary or secondary school. 

c. 

Within one thousand (1,000) feet of any family day care, day care 

center for children, nursery, or preschool. 

d. 

Within one thousand (1,000) feet of any church or other facility or 

institution used primarily for religious purposes. 

e. 

Within one thousand (1,000) feet of any public park. 

   f. 

Within one thousand (1,000) feet of another Adult Entertainment 

Establishment. 

   g. 

Within a local business district, professional business district, 

overlay district or mixed use district. 

  (2) 

The distances provided in this section shall be measured by following a 

straight line, without regard to intervening buildings, from the nearest 

point of the property parcel upon which the proposed use is to be located, 

to the nearest point of the parcel of property or the land use district 

boundary line from which the proposed land use is to be separated. 

  (3) 

The table of permitted uses shall be updated to reflect the location 

restrictions contained herein. 

(e) 

 Hours of Operation.  No Adult Entertainment Establishment shall be open to do 

business before eight o’clock a.m. (8:00a.m.), and no Adult Entertainment Establishment 

shall be open to do business after twelve o’clock (12:00) midnight.  No Adult 

Entertainment Establishment shall be open to do business on Sunday. 

80



 

 

ORDINANCE 2013-                                       PUBLIC INDECENCY                              PAGE  5 

  

(f) 

Permitting.  

(1) 

It shall be unlawful to operate an Adult Entertainment Establishment in 

the City of Daphne without a valid Adult Entertainment Establishment 

Permit. 

  (2) 

An applicant for an Adult Entertainment Establishment Permit shall file in 

person with the Department of Community Development a completed 

application made on a form provided by the Department of Community 

Development accompanied by an application fee of $50.00. 

  (3)  

An application for an Adult Entertainment Establishment Permit shall 

contain: 

(a) 

Applicant’s full name and any other names used by the applicant in 

the past five (5) years.  

(b) 

Written proof of the age of the applicant in the form of a driver’s 

license or other picture identification document issued by a 

governmental agency. 

(c) 

 Current business or mailing address of the applicant. 

(d) 

The proposed name of the proposed Adult Entertainment 

Establishment. 

(e) 

The proposed location of the proposed Adult Entertainment 

Establishment. 

   (f) 

An application of an Adult Entertainment Establishment Permit 

shall be accompanied by a legal description of the property where 

the Adult Entertainment Establishment is proposed to be located. 

  (4) 

An application containing all items required by this section shall be 

considered complete.  Within thirty (30) days of the submission of a 

completed application, the Department of Community Development shall 

issue a permit unless: 

 

81



 

ORDINANCE 2013-                                       PUBLIC INDECENCY                              PAGE  6 

 

(a) 

 The applicant is less than eighteen (18) years of age. 

(b) 

The location of the proposed Adult Entertainment Establishment is 

not in compliance with the locational requirement of this 

ordinance. 

(c) 

The application fee required by the Department of Community 

Development has not been paid. 

  (5) 

Adult Entertainment Establishment Permit shall not, and does not, relieve 

the applicant of other relevant licensing or permitting requirements. 

(g) 

City or state regulation. Nothing in this section is intended to authorize, legalize 

or permit the establishment, operation or maintenance of any business, building or 

use which violates any city regulation or statute of the State of Alabama. 

(h) 

Penalty. Any person found guilty of violating any provision of this Ordinance 

shall be punished by a fine of not less than fifty dollars ($50.00) nor more than 

five hundred dollars ($500.00), or by imprisonment for a period not exceeding six 

(6) months, or both, in the discretion of the municipal judge. 

 

SEVERABILITY 

 

The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any provision, section, 

paragraph, sentence or part thereof shall be held to be unconstitutional or invalid, 

such decision shall not affect or impair the remainder of this Ordinance, it being 

the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, paragraph, 

sentence and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

REPEALER 

 

Ordinance No. 2003-09 is hereby repealed in its entirety.  All other City 

Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provision of this Ordinance, in so 

far as they conflict, are hereby repealed.  This Ordinance shall lift the moratorium 

placed on the “establishment of adult entertainment stores and tattoo parlors in the 

City of Daphne” enacted on February 4, 2013. 

 

 

 

 

82



 
ORDINANCE 2013-                                       PUBLIC INDECENCY                              PAGE  7 

 

 

 

EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as required by 

law.   

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA THIS ___ DAY OF __________________ 2013. 

 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

 

 

_______________________________                                               

      DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________                                                                       

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

   

 

 
 

 

83



CITY OF DAPHNE Mayor Dane Haygood 

PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE MINUTES Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, District 1 

Time: 5:00 PM on April 15, 2013 Councilman John Lake, District 3 

Location: City Hall  Councilman Ron Scott, District 5       Councilman John Lake, District 3  

 Chairman - Councilman Robin LeJeune, District 6      
          

I. CALL TO ORDER 
  

 The April meeting of the Public Works Committee was called to order at 5:07 PM   
 

 Present: 
 

 Councilwoman Tommie Conaway, Councilman John Lake, Robin LeJeune (Chairman), Richard D. 

Johnson-Director Public Works, Sandra Cushway-Administrative Assistant Public Works, Dorothy 

Morrison-Daphne Beautification Committee, Randy Davis-Volkert, Jaye Robertson-HMR Engineers, 

Councilman Joe Davis III, Councilman Pat Rudicell 
 

II. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION & CORRESPONDENCE 
A. Work Request Report for March 2013 was reviewed.  No Comments. 

B. Vehicle/Equipment Maintenance Reports for March 2013 were reviewed. 

C. Public Participation – None  

D. Correspondence – None 

 

III. OLD BUSINESS  

A. Minutes from March 18, 2013 Meeting were reviewed and accepted as written. Motion by 

Councilwoman Conaway to accept minutes.  Motion seconded by Councilwoman Lake. 

B. Mosquito Report – Mosquito spraying started on April 1st.  The first report will be presented at 

next month’s meeting.  Resident’s call in and report mosquito problem.  We then send a 

mosquito person out to evaluate and treat via spraying or placement of larvacide briquettes.  

C. Street Sweeper Reports for March 2013 were reviewed.   

 

IV. NEW BUSINESS 

A. None  
  

V. DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

A. Richard reminded everyone that the Annual Public Works Equipment Show and Expo will be 

held on May 22, 2013.  There will be interactive activities for the students.  Put on your 

calendars and come out for a free lunch. 

 

VI. DAPHNE SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY 

A. Monthly Equipment Use Report for March 2013 was reviewed.  New truck (#1404) now in 

use.  Truck that was under repairs is back in service. 

B. Monthly Recycle Tonnage Report (Tonnage Comparison) for March 2013 was reviewed.  

Tonnage was down this month; however we are still up for the year.   

C. Solid Waste New Customer Report for March 2013 was reviewed.  Fourteen (14) new 

residential customers in the City this past month.  So far, 85 new residents this fiscal year with 

many more new homes currently under construction.   

D. Solid Waste Ordinance and Recommended Changes – Richard asked for approval to take the 

Solid Waste Ordinance to the Ordinance Committee for further discussion.  There have been 

many changes to the Ordinance over the years and he feels that it is time to re-do the 

Ordinance.  Key changes are: 

i. Reclassify that frequency is one pick up per week  

ii. One container per week per resident.  He recommended that there be an additional 

charge for additional cart pickup.  Currently residents have to purchase a second 

garbage cart for $65.  If the resident opts to purchase an additional garbage cart, they 

84



will be assessed and additional cost.  Richard suggested that the additional charge be 

at least 1/3 of the monthly charge.  Councilman Lake stated that he we should charge 

more than that because the cost to the City would increase.  Mayor Haygood 

responded that residents should be limited to two garbage carts.  Councilman Lake 

stated that if the residents are willing to pay for the additional service, then we should 

offer it.  Richard said that he is willing to consider other costs/fees if the committee 

wants to do so. 

E. Mayor Haygood stated that there needs to be more enforcement about where residents are 

placing their trash.  It must be placed in front of their residence and not in front of an empty 

lot.  The arm on the garbage truck can only pick up 300 lbs.  Motion to allow Richard 

Johnson to take the current Solid Waste Ordinance to the Ordinance Committee for 

further discussion made by Councilman Lake.  Motion seconded by Councilwoman 

Conaway.  Richard requested that committee members review the Ordinance and recommend 

and changes they would like to see in the new Ordinance. 

 

VII. MUSEUM COMMITTEE 

A. No Committee meeting in March.  (Committee meetings will be held every other month) 

 

VIII. BEAUTIFICATION COMMITTEE 

A. Minutes from April 3, 2013 Meeting were reviewed.   

B. Great improvements seen at the I-10/Hwy 98 corridor.  Everyday something new is being 

added.   

C. Loop on I-10 on ramp towards Mobile still has bare dirt areas.  Richard reported that ALDOT 

has agrees to hydra seed. There will be a coordinated effort with ALDOT. 

D. Martin houses are up.  The Committee is working to get a map showing where they are 

located. 

E. Still waiting on approval to put Crape Myrtles on Hwy 181.  Waiting on response from 

ALDOT. 

 

IX. ENVIRONMENTAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE 

A. April 1, 2013 Meeting Minutes reviewed 

B. Received a letter of support for CIAP grant.  Hoping to bring back new language on Tree 

Ordinance at next month’s meeting. 

 

X. ENGINEER’S REPORT 

A. HMR: Profit to Johnson substantially completed.  Working on punch list.  Sports Park – 

working on punch list.  Lake Forest Phase II is ongoing.  Ridgewood south of Lawson Bridge.  

Preconstruction meeting to be held this week on additional projects. 

B. Volkert: Should have plans for service road on west side of US98 next week.  The state will 

pay their portion and land owners will pay their portion.   

 

XI. FUTURE BUSINESS 

A. Next Meeting for May 20, 2013 was announced 

 

XII. ADJOURNMENT 

Meeting adjourned at 5:46 PM  Motion made by Councilman LeJeune to adjourn the meeting.  

Motion seconded by Councilman Lake.  

85



District 1 
 

Dorothy Morrison, 
Chair 
Debbie Strahley 
 
District 4 
 

Selena Vaughn 
 
District 5 
 

David Dueitt 
Rebecca Trosclair 
Linda Williams 
 
District 6 
 

Elaine Maxime 
Hollie LeJeuune 
 
City Liaisons 
 

Margorie Bellue 
Richard Johnson 
Dwayne Coley 
David McKelroy 
Denise Penry 
 

 

 
 

Daphne Beautification Minutes 

May 1, 2013 
  

Daphne Beautification Committee Minutes May 1, 2013 

 

Present: Elaine Maxime, Rebecca Trosclair, Tomasina Werner, Pat Rudicell, Debbie Strah-

ley, Selena Vaughn, Margorie Bellue, Dorothy Morrison, Dwayne Coley, Mayor Haygood, 

Denise Penry, Richard Johnson 

 

A. Gator Alley:  Selena reported that we are looking at a Grant from Forever Wild to pur-

chase the land behind the parking lot at Gator Alley Boardwalk.  Fence will get fixed. 

B. Banners:  We have 30 Blue Banners.  Jubilee Square is interested in producing 30 more 

and hanging them in the parking lot.  The Mayor had some question and we are holding 

off on this for a month.  

C. Treasurers Report:  We have $4,173.68  

D. Top Ten list:  Approved $300 to $500 for Clerya to fill in on HWY 98 as the Mayor re-

quested. 

E. PW Report: Sports Complex finished. Main Street at punch list stage. Phase 2 finished.  

Phase 3 should finish 45 after start.  PW will try to finish Patriot’s Point plantings if we 

have a service or not.  The Mayor is getting feedback from Veteran’s about having a ser-

vice on Memorial Day.  Richard requested that PW have more lead time on projects sug-

gested by DBC. 

F. Joe Louis Park:  Completed 

G. I-10 Exit Ramps:  Dead branches at I-10 /98 Exit to Mobile need cleaning up.  Have been 

down for a  month  Remove weeds from of the pavement holding up overpass at I-10 /98 

H. SR181:  Montgomery has said no again to the 181 Crape Myrtles but has left the door 

open for small plants, perhaps Liorope or Hawthorns (a fall planting possibility). 

I. Liorope across from hotels is wonderful.  Many thanks to the Grounds team. 

J. Main Street Southern entrance.  Looking at grass or grasses.  May need to wait until fall 

to plant. 

K. Patriot’s Point:  Selena offered to find some people to help with the planting. 

L. Martin Houses:  Map in planning stages 

M. Christmas committee meeting May 10th in the Mayor’s Conference Room. 

N. Work on plan for Malfunction Junction over the summer. Elaine suggested we find a 

sculpture to create statues for the city.  She will bring back information. 

86



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

SPECIAL BOARDS 

87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



 
P

ag
e1

 

DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1705 MAIN STREET         

DAPHNE, AL 

APRIL 24, 2013    5:30 P.M. 

 

1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 

Casey Zito called the meeting to order at 5:40 p.m.. 

 

Members Present:  Casey Zito; Ken Balme; Dorothy Morrison; Patricia Vanderpool; Dayna 

Oldham; Ronald Nero. 

 

Absent: Doug Bailey; Mary Beth Mantiply.  

 

Also Present: Rebecca Hayes, Recording Secretary; Councilwoman Conaway; Councilman 

Rudicell; Debbie Strahley; Ryan Ramsay; Craig Ramsay. 

 

PRESENTATION:   Ryan Ramsay, Boy Scout Troop 87 / Eagle Scout Project / Build Planter   

                                    Boxes for Olde Towne Daphne 

 

Mr. Ramsay presented his plans to build planter boxes for to go in front of the Olde Towne 

District businesses.  He will raise the money for the project, which is estimated to cost $422.00. 

(The plans are spread out upon these minutes.) 

 

 

2.  APPROVE MINUTES / MARCH 27, 2013 

 

MOTION BY Patricia Vanderpool to approve the March 27, 2013 meeting minutes.  

Seconded by Dorothy Morrison.  

 

 ALL IN FAVOR                  NONE OPPOSED    MOTION CARRIED 

 

3.  TREASURERS REPORT 

 

Casey gave the Treasurers Report ending March 31, 2013 with a balance of $97,813.94. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

98



 
P

ag
e2

 

DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1705 MAIN STREET         

DAPHNE, AL 

APRIL 24, 2013    5:30 P.M. 

 

 

4.  BEAUTIFICATION REPORT 

Dorothy reported that the working of beautifying the city.  They are addressing concerns of the 

Mayor by replanting the plants in front of Hooter’s that are missing, and to replace them with 

more colorful flowers. 

 

MOTION BY Dorothy Morrison to accept Ryan Ramsay’s project proposal to build flower 

boxes to place in front of Olde Towne businesses, and recommend it to council for 

approval.   Seconded by Patricia Vanderpool. 

  

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE  OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

5.  OLD BUSINESS 

     a.)  Plaque 

Dorothy said she has given the plaque to Richard Johnson, and hopefully, it will be ready next 

month. 

 

    b.)  Website 

Terms for the website will be ready for the next meeting.  

 

   c.)  Mini-Grants 

Casey reported they have given out almost $9,000 in grants to Olde Towne businesses to 

improve overall appearance of the building to help draw businesses to the downtown area.  

 

Certa Pro Painters has submitted an application for landscaping around their business on the 

corner of Main Street and Randall Avenue. 

 

MOTION BY Dorothy to approve the mini-grant for Certa Pro Painters for landscaping 

up to $1,025 upon submittal of invoice with breakdown on completion of project.  Seconded 

by Patricia Vanderpool. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED  

    

 

99



 
P

ag
e3

 

 

 

DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

1705 MAIN STREET         

DAPHNE, AL 

APRIL 24, 2013    5:30 P.M. 

 

 

d.)  Christmas Tree 

 

MOTION BY Dorothy Morrison to purchase a 20 foot tall Christmas tree for the front 

lawn of the city with warm lights with a purchase price of $8,989 plus tax.  Seconded by 

Ronald Nero. 

 

AYE    ALL IN FAVOR             NAY    NONE OPPOSED             MOTION CARRIED 

 

 

6.  NEW BUSINESS 

    a.)  Letter from Olde Towne  Daphne West Association 

Casey read the letter from Olde Towne Daphne West Association regarding the map of the Olde 

Towne area regarding ownership of the map. (Letter is spread out upon these minutes)  Olde 

Towne Daphne West Association owns the map, and they have given the business guide to the 

DRA.  

 

Dorothy suggested sending the minutes ahead of time so they can review them before the 

meeting. 

 

 7.  NEXT MEETING 

The next meeting will be May 22, 2013 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

There being no further business to discuss the meeting adjourned at 7:00 p.m. 

 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Downtown Redevelopment Authority 

 

          

100



101



102



103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



City of Daphne Recreation Board 
2605 Hwy 98 

Daphne, AL. 36526 
April 10, 2013 

 
 
Members Present:  Rick Cleveland, Matt Cunningham, Doug Dugat and Kit Smith 
 
Members Absent:  Jan Mittemeyer, Lisa O’Hara and Frank Pierce 
 
Advisory Staff:  Councilman Robin Lejeune, David McKelroy – Parks & Recreation Director and Glenn 
Vickery 
 
Call to Order 
Meeting was called to order at 6:37 
 
Review and Approval of Minutes 
Motion was made by Doug Dugat and seconded by Kit Smith to approve the November 14, 2012 
minutes.  Motion passed. 
 
Public Participation 
Al Guarisco spoke about Bocce being played at the Bay Front pavilion.  Councilman LeJeune reported on 
his meeting with the Mayor on this matter.   
 
Dyan Perrigin and Gerardo Flores of the Daphne Strike Soccer Club spoke to the Board regarding the 
relationship with the City of Daphne Recreation Department. 
 
Program Reports 
Information was provided regarding programs.  Coach Vickery spoke about the Jubilee City 
Championship 7 on 7 football tournament in July. 
 
Old / New Business 

 
1.  Sports Complex Entrance     Councilman LeJeune updated the Board on the status of 

possible tennis courts at this site.  There was discussion by the Board about the 
deviation from the Master Plan. 
 

2. Disc Golf     The Board briefly discussed the possibility of disc golf. 
 

3. Lott Park and Trione Sports Complex     The Board was informed and discussion followed 
about needed improvements (safety, facilities and appearance) at both Lott Park and 
Trione Sports Complex.  A motion was made by Rick Cleveland and seconded by Matt 
Cunningham that needed improvements be presented to the council for consideration.  
Motion passed. 
 

4. Additional Employee     Motion was made by Doug Dugat and seconded by Kit Smith that 
the request for additional employee in the FY2013 budget for a Recreation Programs 
Coordinator be considered.  It was the belief of the Board that this position is needed to 

142



maintain the level of services the Parks and Recreation Department is attempting to 
achieve.  Motion passed. 

 

Adjourn 
Meeting was adjourned at 8:03pm. 
 

 

  
 
 

 

143



 

 

 

REPORT  

OF  

OFFICERS 

144



145



146



147



148



 

 

 

RESOLUTIONS 

& 

ORDINANCES 

149



RESOLUTION 2013 - 31 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 
 

WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 

WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  
 

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
     

    

DEPT EQ/VEH#          DESCRIPTION                                                VIN VIN # / SERIAL # 
    
    Garbage     1205  2007 American LaFrance Condor Garb Tk       5SXHANCY57RZ13897 
 
 

2- The Mayor is authorized to direct the sale of the above listed property to another 
Municipality for a competitive market value. 

 
3- If the above listed equipment is not sold to another municipality then the Mayor is 

authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as contracted for the sale 
of such personal property and sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any 
and all  proceeds to the General Fund.   

 
4-  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the disposition of any property which is not 

claimed by any bidder. 
 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of   May   , 2013. 
           
 

        

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 

       

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

 
 
 

150



CITY OF DAPHNE   

 

RESOLUTION 2013-32 

 

Acceptance of Streets and Drainage 

located in Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C, Phase Two 

                                    

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has received notice that the Planning Commission of 

Daphne has given Final Plat approval to Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C, Phase Two on February 28, 2013, and 

the City of Daphne hereby recommends acceptance of said street(s) located in Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C, 

Phase Two; and, 

 

 Whereas, an inspection was made by the Director of Community Development. All reports, as well as, all other 

related documents have been provided stating that said streets and storm water drainage have been installed in conformity 

with city standards; and, 

 

 Whereas, an inspection was made by the Director of the Division of Public Works, and has accepted said streets 

and storm water drainage of Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C, Phase Two; and, 

 

 Whereas, Baldwin County Sewer Authority and Belforest Water Authority have accepted the utilities of  

Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C, Phase Two; and, 

 

 Whereas, the developer has provided to the City a two-year maintenance bond in the amount of $80,624.28 as 

required and requests acceptance and dedication of the same for maintenance of said improvements as outlined in Article 

XVII, entitled the procedures for Subdivision Review of the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance; and, 

 

 Whereas, the developer has caused the plat to be recorded on Slide 2482-B and 2482-C in the records in Baldwin 

County Judge of Probate Office; and, 

 

 Whereas, the City Council of the City of Daphne believes it is in the best interest of the citizens of the City for 

the City to accept said right-of-way(s); and, 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE AS 

FOLLOWS, that Dunmore Subdivision, Phase Two, Part C, Phase Two, fifty-foot right-of-ways being named Kilkenny 

Lane (641 linear feet), Flynt Drive (635 linear feet), Doireann Street (506 linear feet), and Dunmore Drive (1527 linear 

feet) are hereby accepted by the City of Daphne, Alabama as city streets for maintenance. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA ON THIS THE _________ DAY OF _____________________, 2013. 

 

 THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

   AN ALABAMA MUNICIPAL CORPORATION      

                                   

                                     

    ______________________________ 

     DANE HAYGOOD 

     MAYOR    

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________________ 

REBECCA HAYES,  

CITY CLERK 

151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



RESOLUTION NO.  2013-33 

2013-M- CITY HALL ROOF RESTORATION 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne is required under section 41-16-20 of the Code 
of Alabama to secure competitive bids for items in excess of 50,000; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City of Daphne acknowledges that the cost for the CITY HALL 
ROOF RESTORATION will exceed this amount; and 
 
WHEREAS, Staff has reviewed the bids for the CITY HALL ROOF 
RESTORATION and determined that the bid as presented is reasonable; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff recognizes that some additional work/materials may be required 
if deteriorated wood areas are found during the restoration process and therefore 
unit cost for these materials were included in the bid; and 
 

WHEREAS, Staff recommends the bid for the CITY HALL ROOF RESTORATION 
be awarded to Kiker Corporation. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, AND IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED, THAT THE 

MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, hereby accept the bid of 

Kiker Corporation for the base amount of $71,560.99 and unit cost as follows: 

 Alternate #1: $2,400 – roof drains and related plumbing 

 A. Replace Lightweight Concrete decking as needed -$9.00/ SqFt. 

 B. Replace deteriorated imbedded wood nailers with pressure treated, match 

existing dimension as needed - $12.00/SqFt.  
 
 as specified in BID SPECIFICATION NO. 2013-M-CITY HALL ROOF 
RESTORATION.  (Total project cost estimate is $85,000). 

 
ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS          day of                        ,2013. 
 
 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                             

_____________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  
 
 

160



ORDINANCE 2013  - 25 
 

Appropriation: Fiscal 2013 CAPITAL & PERSONNEL 
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget on 
October 1, 2012; and 
 
WHEREAS, at the end of Fiscal 2012, the Unreserved Fund Balance of the General Fund 
totaled $ 9,946,859; and 
 
WHEREAS, the “target” for such fund balance is $ 8,500,000 and amounts over such may be 
used for capital appropriations in lieu of incurring debt; and 
 
WHEREAS, after reviewing the Fiscal 2012 audit as well as interim financial reports for Fiscal 
2013, the City Council has determined that funds are available for certain additional Fiscal 2013 
personnel and capital appropriations and such appropriations should be considered, approved 
and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, City Departments have submitted new Personnel & Capital requirements; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Mayor and City Council have reviewed such requests and prioritized them 
according to needs and available funds. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
that the Fiscal Year 2013 Budget is hereby amended ($961,544) to include additional General 
Fund appropriations in the amount of $931,544 and $30,000 appropriations from Lodging Tax 
Fund for Gator Alley Boardwalk Repairs ($10,000) and Richard Scardamalia Pavilion Decking 
($20,000): 
 

 $ 70,694  pro-rata Personnel for the remainder of Fiscal 2013  

 $ 860,850 Capital Equipment/Building 

 $   30,000  Capital Building/Boardwalk Improvements – Lodging Tax 
 

Such appropriations are itemized in the attached list and made a part hereof. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, 
this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
 
         

_________________________________ 

                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

161



RECOMMENDED CAPITAL BUDGET APPROVAL ITEMS

PERSONNEL

COURT MAGISTRATE $29,557 $8,867 $38,424

POLICE PATROL OFFICER (1 of 4) $37,220 $16,130 $53,350

POLICE PATROL OFFICER (2 of 4) $37,220 $16,130 $53,350

FIRE LT RECLASSIFICATIONS $6,900 $2,070 $8,970

PUBLIC WORKS PART TIME GROUNDS (30 HRS) $15,975 $3,887 $19,862

RECREATION PART TIME GROUNDS (30 HRS) $15,975 $3,887 $19,862

LIBRARY LIBRARY TECH $8,090 $2,427 $10,517

LIBRARY LIBRARY AIDE (YOUNG ADULT) $5,960 $1,788 $7,748

ANNUAL PERSONNEL TOTAL $212,083

PRORATED FOR FY13 $70,694

EQUIPMENT

GENERAL GOV SMALL SUV LEGISLATIVE $25,000

GENERAL GOV IT INFRASTRUCTURE INFORMATION TECH $25,000

GENERAL GOV CITY HALL ROOF MAINTENANCE BLDG MAINT $85,000

GENERAL GOV MINIVAN JANITORIAL $20,000

POLICE PATROL VEHICLE (1 of 4) $42,675

POLICE PATROL VEHICLE (2 of 4) $42,675

POLICE NEW OFFICER EQUIPMENT (1 OF 4) $5,000

POLICE NEW OFFICER EQUIPMENT (2 OF 4) $5,000

FIRE ADMIN VEHICLE (1 OF 2) $26,000

FIRE ADMIN VEHICLE (2 OF 2) $26,000

SEARCH & RESCUE BOAT - CAROLINA SKIFF $25,000

PUBLIC WORKS KNUCKLEBOOM TRUCK SOLID WASTE $140,000

PUBLIC WORKS TRAFFIC COUNTER SYSTEM ADMIN $18,000

PUBLIC WORKS TRUCK - CREW CAB MOWING $25,000

PUBLIC WORKS TRUCK - CREW CAB MOWING $25,000

PUBLIC WORKS SERVICE TRUCK W/ CRANE MECHANICAL $60,000

PUBLIC WORKS SWEEPER ATTACHMENT FOR CAT924G STREETS $25,000

PUBLIC WORKS TRACTOR MOWING $66,000

PUBLIC WORKS BUSH HOG FOR TRACTOR ABOVE MOWING $12,000

PUBLIC WORKS HVAC FOR PARTS ROOM MECHANICAL $15,000

RECREATION FLOORING $45,000

RECREATION NICHOLSON CENTER ROOF $50,000

RECREATION BOYS & GIRLS CLUB HVAC $18,000

RECREATION ALLIGATOR ALLEY BOARDWALK REPAIRS $10,000

RECREATION MOWER - JOHN DEERE 72" $11,000

CIVIC CENTER AIRWALL $23,500

CIVIC CENTER BAYFRONT DECKING $20,000

EQUIPMENT TOTAL $890,850

PERSONNEL $70,694 (PRORATED FOR FY13; JUNE - SEPTEMBER 2013)

EQUIPMENT $890,850

TOTAL FY13 CAPITAL BUDGET $961,544

162



ORDINANCE 2013-26 
 

Amendments to Pay Plan, Hiring Practices, and Pay Raise Policy 

 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne utilizes a Pay and Classification Plan which establishes certain 

job titles for which a job description is defined and a pay grade is assigned; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Pay Plan Table (the “Pay Scale”) included in the Pay and Classification Plan 

adopted by Ordinance 2004-52, and as subsequently amended, provides for twenty steps of pay 

within each pay grade (the “Steps”) which allow for flexibility in initial salary assignment for an 

employee and subsequent salary advancement; and 

 

WHEREAS, there is a desire for additional steps to be created within the Pay Scale in order to 

provide the opportunity of further advancement for employees who have reached the maximum 

of a step twenty; and 

 

WHEREAS, City of Daphne personnel matters are managed in accord with the Personnel 

Policies and Procedures Manual as originally approved and adopted heretofore by Resolution 

1994-39 and all subsequent amendments thereto (the “Employee Handbook”); and 

 

WHEREAS, certain procedures governing entry pay were adopted in Resolution 2001-17 and 

additional procedures in “Exceptional Situations” were adopted in Resolution 2006-75; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has determined that certain amendments are necessary to better 

accomplish administrative goals and objectives, to provide for additional advancement of long 

tenured and key employees at or near the maximum pay step, to attract and retain key employees, 

to update the methodology utilized for pay raises to better provide performance based 

advancement, to combat the Pay Scale becoming outdated and non-competitive with other 

employment opportunities, and to slow the advancement of employees to the maximum pay step. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

 

SECTION 1. PAY SCALE UPDATED TO TWENTY FIVE STEPS 

The Pay Scale attached as Exhibit A, and containing 25 Steps, is hereby established as the City 

of Daphne Pay Plan Table (the “Pay Scale”).  The Pay Scale may be amended from time to time 

with the approval and adoption by the City Council of a Cost of Living Adjustment (“COLA”). 

 

A COLA may be approved with the adoption of the annual budget, or at any other such time as 

the Council may determine appropriate and necessary.  Any approved and adopted COLA shall 

be applied uniformly to all job grades and steps and the Pay Scale shall be adjusted accordingly. 

 

Enactment of a COLA shall not have an affect on the grade or step of employees but shall alter 

the pay of each step for all grades as specified in the adopted COLA. 

 

163



Ordinance 2013-26                    Page 2 of 4 

 
 

SECTION 2. ESTABLISHMENT OF EMPLOYEE PAY 

In order to ensure adequate opportunity for performance based salary advancement for all 

employees, including exceptional situations, the entry pay grade for an employee shall not 

exceed a Step Sixteen.  The preceding shall apply to classified, unclassified, part-time, or 

temporary employees. 

 

The city recognizes that there are employment hiring situations which require additional pay 

considerations beyond what is normally allowed.  When these situations occur it will be the 

appointing authority’s responsibility to document the applicant’s qualifications and any other 

exceptional circumstances surrounding the hiring decision. The Mayor can review the 

information and decide if the pay step recommendation is appropriate. The Mayor shall have the 

final authority to approve entry-level pay for promoted employees not to exceed a Step Twelve, 

with no further action required by the City Council, provided that funds are available in the 

City’s personnel budget.  An appropriation by the City Council shall be required should adequate 

funds not be available.  Should the pay requirements further exceed the maximum step for which 

the Mayor can approve, the Mayor may request the City Council to review the qualifications for 

step placement beyond which the Mayor has the authority to approve but not to exceed the 

maximum entry pay step that has been established for the City. 

 

SECTION 3. PROMOTION 

When an employee is promoted to another job, the default pay will be established at the entry 

level of the new pay grade.  In the event the entry level of pay for the new pay grade is less than 

the pay associated with a four-step increase from the previous position, the pay established shall 

be the first step in the new pay grade greater than a four-step increase from the previous position.   

 

Promotion of employees to a pay grade which requires additional pay considerations similar to 

those defined as “Exceptional Situations” under normal employment hiring situations shall be 

entitled to the same appeal procedures to the Mayor and City Council provided to non-

promotional hiring. 

 

SECTION 4. ANNUAL SALARY INCREASES 

In order to combat the Pay Scale becoming outdated and non-competitive with other 

employment opportunities and to slow the advancement of employees to the maximum pay step, 

the City shall no longer utilize one-step pay increases as the primary means of providing salary 

increases to employees.  Instead the Mayor and City Council shall utilize Cost of Living 

Adjustment (“COLA”) as the means to provide salary increases to the employee base as a whole.  

The primary method of implementing said salary increases shall be accomplished through a 

COLA approved with the adoption of the budget.  Said COLA for Salary Increases shall not be 

limited to being adopted as part of the budget process but may be approved and adopted at any 

such time as the Mayor and City Council may determine it appropriate and necessary.  Any 

approved and adopted COLA shall be applied uniformly to all job grades and steps and the Pay 

Scale shall be adjusted accordingly, but may be implemented as a percentage based increase or 

an increase in a fixed amount that is applied to all pay grades and steps within the Pay Scale. 

 

164



Ordinance 2013-26                    Page 3 of 4 

 
 

SECTION 5. MERIT BASED PAY INCREASES 

Employee pay scale step increases shall be limited to performance or merit based pay increases. 
 

Employees are from time to time evaluated on their job performance. A Department Head may 

request a merit based step increase for employees demonstrating exceptional job performance.  

Merit increases shall be awarded to employees in the form of a one-step pay increase.   

 

Funding for the one-step merit pay increases shall be subject to appropriated funds in the annual 

budget, as adopted or amended from time to time by the City Council.  The annual budget shall 

include a line item to provide allocation, if any, for one-step merit pay increases.  The allocation 

amount, number of requests, and performance demonstrated by the employee shall be among the 

factors considered in awarding merit-based increases. Upon the award of a merit step increase by 

the Mayor, funding to cover the increase in salary for the award shall be transferred from the 

one-step merit pay allocation to the corresponding city department’s personnel budget. 
 

Documentation of approved merit step increases shall be forwarded to the Human Resource 

Director for inclusion in the employee’s file.  Such documentation shall include the basis upon 

which the merit pay increase is awarded. 

 

SECTION 6. REPEALER 

That Resolution 2006-75 be and is hereby repealed in its entirety and those parts of Resolution 

2001-17 that conflict with this ordinance be and are hereby repealed as well as any other 

ordinance or resolution, or parts thereof, heretofore adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, which is in conflict with this Ordinance be and is hereby repealed to the 

extent of such conflict. 

 

SECTION 7. DOCUMENTATION OF ACTIONS 

All circumstances outlined and included herein shall be fully documented and provided to 

Human Resources for inclusion in personnel files. 

   

SECTION 8. INTEGRATION INTO EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK 
The Human Resources Director is hereby authorized to amend the Employee Handbook to 

include the policies and procedures herein established and to remove all sections from such 

Employee Handbook which conflict with the provisions of this Ordinance. 

 

SECTION 9. SEVERABILITY 
If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, or portion of this ordinance is for any reason 

held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, such portion shall be 

deemed separate, distinct, and independent and such holding shall not affect the validity of the 

remaining portions hereof. 

 

SECTION 10. EFFECTIVE DATE 
This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 

approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama, and upon its publication as 

required by law. 

 

165



Ordinance 2013-26                    Page 4 of 4 

 
 

 

 

ADODPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, THIS ________ DAY OF ______________, 2013. 

 

 

       ______________________________ 

       DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

 

________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

 

166



167



168



169



ORDINANCE NO. 2013-27 

 

FOR THE ANNEXATION OF CERTAIN PROPERTY TO THE CORPORATE LIMITS  

OF THE MUNICIPALITY OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

 

 GCOF  Retreat at Tiawasee, LLC 

(Located Southwest of the intersection of Tiawasee Trace Boulevard and County Road 13) 

(31.53 acres) 

 
  

 BE IT ORDAINED BY CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, AS 

FOLLOWS: 
 

 WHEREAS, the owners of the property described in Section 2 of this Ordinance have signed and 

filed a written petition with the City Clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, requesting that such property 

be annexed to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, all of such property is located and contained within an area contiguous to the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama and does not lie within the corporate limits or police 

jurisdiction of any other municipality; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition contains an accurate description of the property or territory proposed 

to be annexed together with a map of said property showing its relationship to the corporate limits of the 

City of Daphne; and, 

 

 WHEREAS, said petition has been presented to the Planning Commission of the City of Daphne 

on March 28, 2013, and a favorable  recommendation was approved for the City Council to consider said 

request for annexation and said property shall be zoned R-2, Medium Density Single Family 

Residential District; and 

 

 WHEREAS, after proper publication, a public hearing was held by the City Council on May 20, 

2013 concerning the petition for annexation; and, 

  

 WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Daphne, Alabama has determined that it is in the 

best interest of said City that the property described in Section 2 hereof be annexed to the corporate limits 

of the City of Daphne, and that all the requirements of Sections 11-42-21 through 11-42-24, Code of 

Alabama, 1975, as amended have been complied with by said Petitioner. 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 

DAPHNE, ALABAMA, as follows: 

 

 SECTION 1: CONSENT TO ANNEXATION. The City Council of the City of Daphne, 

Alabama does by this Ordinance assent to the annexation of the property described in Section 2 of this 

Ordinance to the corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama, and does by the adoption of this 

Ordinance, extend and rearrange said corporate limits to embrace and include such property. 

 

 SECTION 2: THE PROPERTY. That property requested to be annexed into the City of Daphne 

is described in Exhibit "A", attached hereto and made a part of this Ordinance as if fully set out herein. 

 
 SECTION 3: MAP OF PROPERTY. The property hereby annexed to the City of Daphne, 

Alabama, is set forth and described in Exhibit "B" and attached hereto a map of the property showing its 

relationship to the corporate limits of the municipality of the City of Daphne and made a part of this 

Ordinance. 

 

 

170



 

 

ORDINANCE 2013-27                   GCOF Retreat at Tiawasee                                       PAGE    2 

 

 

 

 SECTION 4: PUBLICATION. This Ordinance shall be published as required by Section 11-42-

21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended, and the property described herein shall be annexed to the 

corporate limits of the City of Daphne, Alabama, upon such publication. 

 

 SECTION 5: PROBATE COURT.  A description of the property described in this Ordinance 

shall be filed in the Office of the Judge of Probate of Baldwin County, Alabama, as required by Section 

11-42-21, Code of Alabama, 1975, as amended.  

 

LEGAL: 
“Exhibit A” 

 
COMMENCING AT THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 

SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA AS RECORDED IN 

THE OFFICE OF THE JUDGE OF PROBATE, BALDWIN COUNTY, ALABAMA, 

REAL PROPERTY BOOK 256, PAGE 274; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 

840.93 FEET TO THE NORTH RIGHT OF WAY OF PARKER ROAD (80' R/W); 

THENCE RUN ALONG THE SAID NORTH RIGHT OF WAY NORTH 89°32'20" 

EAST, 42.92 FEET TO THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD ROAD; THENCE 

RUN ALONG THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY SOUTH 00°00'19" EAST, 403.14 FEET 

TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°50'14" EAST, 3490.21 

FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 89°48'53" EAST, 786.31 FEET; THENCE RUN 

SOUTH 11°19'19" EAST, 51.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'05" WEST, 

796.66 FEET; THENCE RUN SOUTH 00°05'47" EAST, 1327.82 FEET; THENCE 

RUN NORTH 89°48'41" WEST, 878.46 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 00°10'07" 

EAST, 1328.02 FEET; THENCE RUN NORTH 89°49'02" WEST, 2617.56 FEET TO 

THE EAST RIGHT OF WAY OF POLLARD ROAD (80' R/W); THENCE RUN 

ALONG SAID EAST RIGHT OF WAY NORTH 00°00'19" WEST, 48.51 FEET TO 

THE POINT OF BEGINNING.  PARCEL CONTAINING 31.53 ACRES, MORE OR 

LESS, LYING IN SECTION 9, TOWNSHIP 5 SOUTH, RANGE 2 EAST, BALDWIN 

COUNTY, ALABAMA. 

 

 
 ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA on this _____ day of ___________, 2013. 

 

 

           

 

 

                                                                                            ____________________________________                                                               

       Dane Haygood, 

       Mayor 
        

ATTEST: 

 

_____________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, 

City Clerk 

171



172



173



174



175



176



177



ORDINANCE 2013-28  
 
 

Fire Engine #4: Vehicle #822 Repair Appropriation 
 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 

 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, due to unforeseen engine damage on 2000 Freightliner FL80 Fire 
Engine-Veh# 822 an emergency repair is needed to get the truck back in working 
condition; and 
 
WHEREAS, the fire engine #4 -Vehicle #822 is one of the City’s front line fire trucks 
and is required to respond to emergency calls throughout the City. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds up to the amount of $15,000 from the General Fund are 
hereby appropriated and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget for repairs 
required for the 2000 Freightliner Fire Engine – Vehicle #822. 
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
 
         
                           

 
_________________________________ 

                                                                          Dane Haygood. , Mayor 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

178



ORDINANCE 2013-29 
 
 

Mobile Bay National Estuary Program 
 
WHEREAS, Ordinance 2012-58 approved and adopted the Fiscal Year 2013 
Budget on October 1, 2012; and 

 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS,  the Mobile Bay National Estuary Program  (MBNEP) is instrumental in 
addressing environmental challenges in Daphne through its various programs and 
grants made available to the City; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined it to be in the best interest of the City 
to make a $10,000 contribution to the MBNEP. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds  from the General Fund are hereby appropriated and made a 
part of the Fiscal Year 2013 budget in the amount of $10,000 for a contribution to 
the MBNEP.  Furthermore, the Mayor is authorized to execute an agreement, on 
behalf of the City of Daphne, as necessary for such purpose.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this   ____     day of  ________________    , 2013. 
 
         
 
     

_________________________________ 
                                                                       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca  A. Hayes, City Clerk  

179



 1 

STATE OF ALABAMA ) 
BALDWIN COUNTY ) 
CITY OF DAPHNE  ) 
 

MUNICIPAL AGENCY FUNDING CONTRACT 
 
THIS AGREEMENT, made and entered into on this the ____ day of __________, 2013, 
by and between the CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal Corporation, of the State of 
Alabama (hereinafter sometimes referred to as "City" or "the City"), and the Mobile Bay 
National Estuary Program,  (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the “Agency"): 
 
 
W-I-T-N-E-S-S-E-T-H 
 
 WHEREAS, the Agency has requested that the City of Daphne appropriate funds 
for its use for the benefit, either directly or indirectly, of the residents of the City; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Daphne desires to have the Agency perform certain 
services during the 2013 fiscal year. 
 
 THEREFORE, in consideration of the benefits moving each to the other, it is 
mutually agreed by and between the City and the Agency as follows: 
 
I. AUTHORITY 
 
 Agency represents and warrants to City that it is authorized by law to receive 
funding from City and that such funding will not be in violation of Article IV, Section 94, 
or amendments thereto, of the Constitution of Alabama, 1901, or any other 
constitutional or statutory provision. 
 
Agency further warrants that funding from the City will only be used to perform public 
services and/or acts which the City is otherwise authorized to perform or to fund itself. 
 
II. SERVICES 
 
 The Agency shall provide the following public services within the Corporate 
Limits of the City of Daphne: 
 
1)  Address regional environmental challenges such as comprehensive land use 
planning, storm water management, and smart growth practices by helping bay 
communities develop the tools necessary to strike a balance between growth and 
development and the wise use and protection of water, land, and living resources; AND 
2)  Promote the use of sound, science-based information; AND 
3) Initiate programs and projects that benefit both the citizens and the environment; 
AND 
4) Implement the community-developed Comprehensive Conservation and 
Management Plan. 
 

180



 2 

 If Agency provides public services both inside and outside the Corporate Limits 
of the City, then, if requested by the City or its representative, it shall submit an audit 
report demonstrating that services by the Agency, at least to the extent of the funding 
herein, shall be and were provided within the Corporate Limits of the City, including an 
identification of the number of City residents served by said agency. 
 
III.  APPROPRIATION 
 
 The City shall appropriate funds to the Agency in the following amount for the 
2013 fiscal year: $10,000 (Ten Thousand Dollars), said amount to be paid pursuant to 
a method determined by the Finance Director of the City.  The Finance Director of the 
City or his/her designee shall be the representative of the City for the administration and 
implementation of the provisions hereof on behalf of the City. 
 
IV.  SEPARATE AGREEMENTS 
 
 The City shall be under no obligation to the Agency except to the extent set out 
expressly in this Agreement.  Provided, however, in the event there is a separate valid 
written agreement between the City and Agency, then this Funding Agreement is 
supplemental thereto and in the event of a conflict the terms of the latest written 
agreement shall prevail. 
 
V.  TERM; TERMINATION 
 
 The terms of this Agreement shall commerce when adopted by Council, and 
shall continue in force until the 30th day of September, 2013, unless sooner 
terminated.  Provided, however, in the event a new contract is not executed by the 
commencement of the new fiscal year, the City may elect to continue funding if 
appropriated by budget or budget continuation provisions and if so, the Agency agrees 
to remain bound by the terms of this Agreement and to continue to provide all services 
hereunder until a new funding contract is executed. The contract is otherwise 
terminated as set forth herein or if the official City budget does not contain an 
appropriation for the Agency.  Either party to this Agreement may, with or without cause, 
terminate this Agreement as to the first day of any month by giving the other party no 
less than thirty (30) days written notice thereof.  In event of termination by either party, 
the Agency shall refund to the City an amount equal to the excess of the total amount 
appropriated over an amount which bears the same ratio to the total amount 
appropriated as the month(s) actually performed bear to the total months covered by 
this Agreement. 
 
 
 
VI.  NON-DISCRIMINATION AND COMPLIANCE 
 
 This Agency hereby covenants and agrees that in performing its responsibilities 
and obligations hereunder, the Agency, its officers, agents and employees will not, on 
the grounds of race, color, sex, religion, national origin, or disability, discriminate or 
permit discrimination against any person or group of persons, in any manner.  The 

181



 3 

Agency further agrees to comply with all applicable state and federal ordinances and 
regulations, including but not limited to the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, the Americans 
with Disabilities Act, the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and any regulations promulgated 
thereunder.  The Agency further agrees to appoint an ADA coordinator.  Said 
coordinator will be responsible for ensuring that the Agency is in compliance with the 
Americans with Disabilities Act and will advise the City of Daphne ADA Coordinator for 
services and programs as to the Agency's state of compliance with the Americans with 
Disabilities Act. 
 
VII.  INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
 It is agreed between the City and the Agency that the Agency is an independent 
contractor.  Neither the City nor its officers, agents or employees shall be liable for 
damages, claims, actions, or causes of action, brought against the Agency, for the 
activities of the Agency. 
 
 Notwithstanding any of the provisions of this Agreement, it is agreed that the City 
has no financial interest in the business of Agency, and shall not be liable for any debts 
or obligations incurred by Agency, nor shall the City be deemed or construed to be 
partner, joint adventurer or otherwise interested party in the assets of Agency, or profits 
earned or derived by Agency, nor shall Agency at any time or times use the name or 
credit of the City in purchasing or attempting to purchase any equipment, supplies, or 
other thing or things whatsoever. 
 
 Agency in the performance of its operations and obligations hereunder shall not 
be deemed to be the agent of the City but shall be deemed to be an independent 
contractor in every respect and shall take all steps at its own expense as City may from 
time to time request to indicate that it is an independent contractor.  City does not and 
will not assume any responsibility for the means by which or manner in which services 
by Agency, provided for herein, are performed, but on the contrary, Agency shall be 
wholly responsible therefore. 
 
VIII.  INDEMNITY 
 
 The Agency hereby covenants with the City that it will indemnify and hold the City 
and its officers, agents and employees harmless for or on account of any claim, suit, 
cause of action or judgment arising out of or in any manner associated with this 
Agreement or services provided or performed by Agency or any of its officers, agents or 
employees. 
 
IX.  NO THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES 
 
 It is the intent of the parties to this Agreement that they be the only parties to the 
Agreement and to expressly exclude third party beneficiaries; no person not a party to 
the Agreement may claim benefits under the Agreement. 
 
 
X.  SERVICE AREA 

182



 4 

 
 Agency shall submit, if requested by the City, to the Office of the Finance 
Director of the City, a written monthly report of the Agency's activities and expenditures, 
including, but not limited to, information demonstrating that services by the Agency 
within the Corporate Limits of the City at least equal, if not exceed, the funding from the 
City for that month.  Should the City determine at any time during the term of this 
Contract that Agency is not providing services within the City Corporate Limits at least 
equal to the funding herein, then the City may terminate this Agreement immediately.  
Upon such termination, Agency may be, at the sole discretion of the City, required to 
refund any funds deemed by the City not to have been appropriately expended within 
the Corporate Limits. 
 
XI.  BOOKS AND RECORDS/REPORTS 
 
 Agency shall, at the request of the City, throw open and provide, at a time and 
place designated by the City, all books, records, accounts, statements and other 
documents as needed by the City to enable it to conduct a financial and/or operational 
review or audit of agency operations and/or finances.  If Agency refuses to honor the 
City's request within ten (10) days, it shall refund to the City all funds appropriated to it 
during the term of the contract.  All reports, evaluations and audits required shall be 
provided by Agency to any person appointed by the City or the Mayor to the Agency's 
governing body. 
 
XII.  AUDIT 
 
 The City may require Agency to have its financial records audited by an 
independent CPA firm.  A copy of the audited financial statements will be mailed to the 
City's Finance Director as soon as possible after the statements are issued. 
 
XIII.  OPEN MEETING, PUBLIC RECORDS, COMPETITIVE BIDS 
AND OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS 
 
 A. As Agency is receiving public funds and/or other things of public value, 
including in-kind services, use of City employees and/or equipment from the City 
pursuant to this agreement, Agency agrees as follows: 
 
 1. To the same and like extent as is applicable to the City of Daphne, all 
meetings of the governing or controlling body of the Agency or any committee or 
subcommittee thereof shall be open to the public when any issue or matter involving or 
relating directly or indirectly to this Agreement is discussed or considered and when 
there is any discussion or consideration of the use of public funds or things of value 
provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 
 2. Public Records.  To the same and like extent as is applicable to the City of 
Daphne pursuant to State law, all records, documents, letters, minutes, memoranda, 
etc. of the Agency shall be open to public inspection and copying when the same 
pertain to any issue or matter involving or relating directly or indirectly to the 
performance by Agency of this Agreement or the use of public funds or other things of 

183



 5 

value provided to the Agency by or through the City. 
 
 3. Expenditure of Public Funds.  To the same and like extent as is applicable 
to the City pursuant to State law, all expenditures or disbursements of funds received by 
the Agency, whether directly or indirectly, from the City shall be subject to competitive 
bidding. 
 
XIV.  SEVERABILITY 
 
 It is expressly understood and agreed by and between the parties hereto that in 
the event any covenant, condition or provision herein contained is held to be invalid by 
any court of competent jurisdiction, or otherwise appears to both parties to be invalid, 
the invalidity of any such covenant, condition, or provision herein contained, shall not 
affect other remaining and valid covenants or conditions herein unless such invalidity 
renders performance of the essential elements of the contract impossible. 
 
XV.  MISCELLANEOUS CLAUSES 
 
 Capacity: Each Party to this Agreement represents and warrants to the other as 
follows: 
 
 A. That it is an individual of the age of majority or otherwise a legal entity duly 
organized and in good standing pursuant to all applicable laws, rules and regulations. 
 
 B. That each has full power and capacity to enter into this Agreement, to 
perform and to conclude the same including the capacity, to the extent applicable, to 
grant, convey and/or transfer, areas, assets, facilities, properties, (both real and 
personal), permits, consents and authorizations and/or the full power and right to 
acquire and accept the same. 
 
 C. That to the extent required, each Party has obtained the necessary 
approval of its governing body or board and a resolution or other binding act has been 
duly and properly enacted by such governing body or board authorizing this Agreement 
and said approval has been reduced to writing and certified or attested by the 
appropriate official of the Party. 
 
 D. That each Party has duly authorized and empowered a representative to 
execute this Agreement on their respective behalf and the execution of the Agreement 
by such representative fully and completely binds the Party to the terms and conditions 
hereof. 
 
 E. That absent fraud, the execution of this Agreement by a representative of 
the party shall constitute a certification that all such authorization for execution exists 
and has been performed and the other Party shall be entitled to rely upon the same.  To 
the extent a Party is a partnership, limited liability company or joint venture, the 
execution of this Agreement by any member thereof shall bind the Party and to the 
extent that the execution of Agreement is limited to a manager, managing partner or 
specific member then the person so executing this Agreement is duly authorized to act 

184



 6 

in such capacity for the Party. 
 
 F. That each party represents and warrants to the other that there is no 
litigation, claim, or administrative action threatened or pending or other proceedings to 
its knowledge against it which would have an adverse impact upon this transaction or 
upon either's ability to conclude the transaction or perform pursuant to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 G. That each party has obtained any and all required permits, approvals 
and/or authorizations from third parties to enable it to fully perform pursuant to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. 
 
 Final Integration: This Agreement together with any amendments, constitutes 
the entire agreement of the parties, as a complete and final integration thereof with 
respect to its subject matter.  In the event of a direct conflict between the provisions 
hereof and any prior agreement or amendment, the latter shall supersede the former.  
All written or oral understandings and agreements heretofore had between and among 
the parties are merged into this Agreement, which alone fully and completely expresses 
their understandings.  No representation, warranty or covenant made by any party 
which is not contained in this Agreement or expressly referred to herein has been relied 
on by any party in entering into this Agreement. 
 
 Force Majeure: Neither party to this Agreement shall hold the other party 
responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, 
lockouts or other circumstances beyond the reasonable control of the other or the other 
party's employees agents or contractors. 
 
 Amendment in Writing: This Agreement may not be amended, modified, 
altered, changed, terminated or waived in any respect whatsoever, except by a further 
agreement in writing, properly executed by all of the parties. 
 
 Binding Effect: This Agreement shall bind the parties and their respective 
personal representatives, heirs, next of kin, legatees, distributees, successors, and 
assigns.  If any provision in this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable, the 
validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions shall not in any way be 
affected or impaired thereby. 
 
 Captions: The captions of this Agreement are for convenience and reference 
only, are not a part of this Agreement, and in no way define, describe, extend or limit the 
scope or intent of this Agreement. 
 
 Constructions: This Agreement shall be construed in its entirety according to its 
plain meaning and shall not be construed against the party who provided or drafted it. 
 
 Mandatory and Permissive: "Shall", "will", and "agrees" are mandatory, "may" 
is permissive. 
 
 Governing Laws: The laws of the State of Alabama shall govern the validity of 

185



 7 

this Agreement, the construction of its terms, the interpretation of the rights, the duties 
of the parties, the enforcement of its terms, and all other matters relating to this 
Agreement. 
 
 Prohibition on Assignment and Delegation: No party to this Agreement may 
assign or delegate its interests or obligations hereunder without the written consent of 
all other parties hereto obtained in advance of any such assignment or delegation.  No 
such assignment or delegation shall in any manner whatsoever relieve any party from 
its obligations and duties hereunder and such assigning or delegating party shall in all 
respects remain liable irrespective of such assignment or delegation. 
 
 Waiver: Non enforcement of any provision of this Agreement by either party shall 
not constitute a waiver of that provision, nor shall it affect the enforceability of that 
provision or of the remaining terms and conditions of the Agreement. 
 
 Ownership of Contract Documents: The Contract Documents, and copies of 
parts thereof, are furnished and owned by the City.  All portions of the Contract 
Document, and copies of parts thereof, are the instruments of serve for this project.  
They are not to be used on other work and are to be returned to the City on request at 
the completion of the work.  Any reuse of these materials without specific written 
verification or adaptation by the City will be at the risk of the user and without liability or 
legal expense to the City.  Such user shall hold the City harmless from any and all 
damages, including reasonable attorneys fees, from any and all claims arising from any 
such reuse.  Any such verification and adoption shall entitle the City to further 
compensation at rates to be agreed upon by the user and the City. 
 
 Fines and Penalties The Contractor shall be solely liable for any and all fines or 
penalties which may be levied by any governmental authority against the Owner and/or 
Contractor which are related to the Contractor's operations.  The Owner shall deduct the 
amount of the levied fine or penalty from the Contract amount. 
 
 Agreement Date/Counterparts: The date of this Agreement is intended as and 
for a date for the convenient identification of this Agreement and is not intended to 
indicate that this Agreement was necessarily executed and delivered on said date.  This 
instrument may be executed in any number of counterparts, each of which so executed 
shall be deemed an original, but all such counterparts shall together constitute but one 
and the same instrument. 
 
 Use of Words and Phrases: The following words and phrases, where used in 
this document, shall be given the following and respective interpretations.  "Herein," 
"hereby," "hereunder," and other equivalent words refer to this document as an entirety 
and not solely to the particular portion hereof in which any such word is used. 
 
 The definitions set forth in any portion of this Agreement unless the text or 
context indicates differently shall be deemed applicable whether the words defined are 
herein used in the singular or the plural.  Wherever used herein any pronoun or 
pronouns shall be deemed to include both singular and plural and to cover all genders. 
 

186



 8 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of 
the day and date first set forth above. 
 
 
     CITY OF DAPHNE, a Municipal Corporation 
 
     ___________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________  
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 
 
 

MOBILE BAY NATIONAL ESTUARY PROGRAM 
 
     BY:_______________________________ 
 
     TITLE:_____________________________ 
 
     Federal Tax ID#:_____________________ 
 
WITNESS: 
 
 
____________________________ 
By:_________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

187



 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

ORDINANCE NO. 2013-30 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING SOLICITATION  

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that the solicitation 

ordinance currently in place is inadequate to protect the public health, safety and welfare of the 

citizens, and preserve the quality of life, property values and character of the City of Daphne;  

WHEREAS the City Council of the City of Daphne has determined that Solicitation (as 

hereinafter defined) endangers public health, safety and welfare of the citizens, and is a public 

nuisance that damages the quality of life, property values and character of the City of Daphne;  

WHEREAS it is the intent of the City Council of the City of Daphne to enact a content-

neutral ordinance regulating Solicitation to further a compelling governmental interest of 

protecting the public health, safety and welfare of the citizens, and preserving the quality of life, 

property values and character of the City of Daphne; and 

WHEREAS it is not the intent of the City Council of the City of Daphne to suppress any 

speech activities protected by the United States Constitution or the Alabama Constitution. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT HEREBY ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA AS FOLLOWS: 

I. DEFINITIONS.  For the purposes of this Ordinance, the following words shall have 

the following meanings: 

 

A. “Solicitation” means the practice of going in and upon private residences or 

business establishment in the City of Daphne, without permission, invitation or 

consent of the owner or occupant, for the purpose of soliciting orders for the sale 

of goods, wares, merchandise, services or donations.  

 

B. “Solicitor” means a person engaged in Solicitation.  

 

II. BACKGROUND CHECK AND BUSINESS LICENSE REQUIREMENT.  

Solicitors within the City must submit a Solicitors Background Check Request and 

receive a Business License (pursuant to the City Business License Ordinance) prior to 

engaging in Solicitation.  

 

III. APPLICATION. 

 

 

A. Before a Business License may be issued to a Solicitor, an applicant shall 

provide complete information concerning the applicant and the business 

represented including, but not limited to: goods to be sold, description of 

vehicle, employer‟s name and address, record of any convictions of any law  
 

188



 

 

ORDINANCE 2013-30                                                  SOLICITATION                                       PAGE  2 

 

 

violation, identifying pictures, finger printing, and any other information which 

may be required to perform a criminal background check by the chief of police 

or his designee. 

 

B. A Business License shall be issued subject to the provisions of this section and 

inquiry of pertinent information to be made by the mayor, chief of police, or 

their designee after receipt of an application. 

 

 

C. No Business License shall be issued to any person who has been convicted of a 

federal or state felony, or a crime involving theft, harassment, sexual misconduct 

or moral turpitude. 

 

IV. FEES.  Upon filing of the application for permit, the following fees shall be collected 

from the applicant: 

 

A. Solicitor Fee of seventy-five dollars ($75.00) for each Solicitor. 

 

B. A deposit against sales tax in the amount of one hundred dollars ($100.00), 

which deposit shall be held by the City and for each Solicitor credited to any 

sales tax owing, returned to the licensee if the City determines that all sales tax 

due has been paid, or applied by the Solicitor as a deposit for a Business License 

issued in future years. 

 

C. In the event the Business License is denied, the applicant shall be entitled to 

receive a refund of one hundred sixty-five dollars ($165.00), and the remaining 

ten dollars ($10.00) will be retained by the City as reimbursement for the 

expenses involved in conducting the background check. 

 

V. VIOLATION.  Any persons convicted of a Violation (as defined below) shall be fined 

the sum of not less than one hundred dollars ($100.00), nor more than five hundred 

dollars ($500.00), and the Solicitor‟s Business License shall be revoked.  Each 

Solicitation of a household or business establishment resulting in a Violation shall be 

considered a separate offense.  It is a Violation to engage in any of the following 

activities: 

 

A. Solicitation within the City of Daphne by persons not holding a valid Business 

License.  

 

B. Intentionally or recklessly making materially false or fraudulent statements in 

the course of Solicitation. 

 

 

C. Using a fictitious name, an alias, or any name other than a true, correct and legal 

name. 

189



 

 

ORDINANCE 2013-30                                                  SOLICITATION                                       PAGE  3 
 

 

D. Solicitation at a business establishment that has properly displayed a “No 

Soliciting” placard as outlined in the “„NO SOLICITING‟ NOTICES” Section 

of this Ordinance.   

 

E. Solicitation at a private residence.  

 

VI. REVOCATION.  A Solicitor‟s Business License shall be revoked if the Solicitor 

otherwise becomes disqualified for the issuance of a Business License.   

 

VII. “NO SOLICITING” NOTICES.   

A. Any owner or occupant of a business establishment who desires not to have 

Solicitors call on them shall give notice of the desire to refuse Solicitors by 

displaying a clearly visible weatherproof placard no smaller than sixteen (16) 

square inches and no larger than ninety-four (94) square inches stating “No 

Soliciting” which shall be posted on or near the main entrance of the private 

property and not within the public right-of-way.  
 

B. The display of said placard shall be deemed to constitute notice to any Solicitor 

that the owner or occupant of the business establishment does not desire to invite 

Solicitors. 

 

 

VIII. TIME OF DAY RESTRICTIONS.  No Solicitor shall conduction Solicitation before 

9:00 a.m. or after sunset. 

 

IX. EXCEPTIONS.  Persons, organizations or entities which are (1) exempt from the City 

Business License Ordinance or (2) exempt from payment for such Business License or 

City Sales Tax or (3) conducting fundraisers on behalf of primary or secondary schools 

of which the citizens of the City of Daphne attend (the “Exempt Parties”) are exempt 

from the Background Check and Business License Requirement as stated in Section II 

of this Ordinance.  Accordingly, the Exempt Parties are also exempt from the Violations 

described in Subsections A and E of Section V. 

 

 

X. SEVERABILITY.  The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  If any provision, 

section, paragraph, sentence or part thereof shall be held to be unconstitutional or 

invalid, such decision shall not affect or impair the remainder of this Ordinance, it being 

the legislative intent to ordain and enact each provision, section, paragraph, sentence 

and part thereof separately and independently of each other. 

 

XI. REPEALER.  Ordinance Nos. 1995-01, 1995-08 and 2010-47 are hereby repealed in 

their entirety.  All other City Ordinances or parts thereof in conflict with the provision 

of this Ordinance, in so far as they conflict, are hereby repealed. 

 

190



 

 

ORDINANCE 2013-30                                      SOLICITATION                                       PAGE  4 

 

 

 

 

XII. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force from and after 

the date of its approval by the City Council of the City of Daphne and publication as 

required by law. 

 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA ON THIS THE ___ DAY OF __________________ 2013. 

 

 

CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

_______________________________                                                

DANE HAYGOOD, MAYOR 

 

ATTEST: 

 

__________________________________                                                                       

REBECCA A. HAYES, CITY CLERK 

   

 

191


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL
	Council Meeting Minutes - May 6
	Council Work Session Minutes - May 13
	Eagle Scout Project - Ramsay
	Proclamation - PW Week
	Public Hearing Info
	Report of Standing Committees
	Finance Minutes
	Backup to Finance Minutes 5-13-13
	Public Safety Minutes
	Ordinance Committee Minutes - MAY 8 2013
	PUBLIC HEARING SET DATE  - Public IndecencyLIST FOR PACKET - Public Indecency Ord
	Public Hearing Set Date - ORD - PUBLIC INDECENCY ORD - 5-13-13
	Public Works Committee Meeting Minutes
	Beautification Meeting Meeting Minutes
	Report of Special Boards
	BZA Minutes - January 3, 2013
	BZA Appointment Letter - Adrienne
	BZA NOMINATION
	DRA Minutes - April 24
	Backup to DRA Minutes
	Planning Commission Minutes
	Public Hearing Set Date Info EARTH INC
	RECREATION BOARD MINUTES -- 4-10-13
	Report of Officers
	Parade Permit - CTK
	Parade Permits - 5-20-13
	Resolutions & Ordinances
	2013-31 - RES - Surplus lListSale to specified City
	2013-32 - RES - dunmoreph2ptcphtwo2ndrevres041113
	Backup to 2013-32 - RES
	2013-33 -  RES - Bid Award City Hall  Roof Restoration-2013
	2013-25 - ORD - New Capital Requests - FINAL FROM SUZANNE
	backup to 2013-25  - Capital Requests 20130408_requested
	2013-26 - ORD - Revision to Pay Scale - 25 Steps - FINAL
	Backup to 2013-26 - ORD
	2013-27 - ANNEXATION - RETREAT AT TIAWASEE 
	Backup 2013-27 - ORD
	Backup to 2013-27 - ORD
	2013-28 - ORD -  Fire Engine Veh#822 Repair
	2013-29 - ORD - Mobile Bay NEP-Community Contribution
	Backup t 2013-29 - Mobile Bay NEP Contract
	Backu to 2013-29 - ORD
	2013-30 - SOLICITATION ORD - FINAL - 5-13-13



